PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE
NOTICE OF MEETING
Date:
Time
Place:

Wednesday, 16 June 2021
10.30 am
Surrey County Council, Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate,
Surrey, RH2 8EF

Contact:
Joss Butler,
Telephone:
07929 745 197
Email:
joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk
[For queries on the content of the agenda and requests for copies of related documents]

APPOINTED MEMBERS [11]
Tim Hall (Chairman)
Leatherhead and Fetcham East;
Ernest Mallett MBE
West Molesey;
Penny Rivers
Godalming North;
Jeffrey Gray
Caterham Valley;
Jonathan Hulley
Foxhills, Thorpe & Virginia Water;
Victor Lewanski
Reigate;
David Lewis
Cobham;
Scott Lewis
Woodham and New Haw;
Catherine Powell
Farnham North;
Richard Tear
Bagshot, Windlesham and Chobham;
Jeremy Webster (Vice-Chairman)
Caterham Hill;

Tim Oliver
Becky Rush
Helyn Clack
Saj Hussain

Stephen Cooksey
Nick Darby
Amanda Boote
Luke Bennett
David Harmer
Trefor Hogg
Riasat Khan
Carla Morson
Mark Sugden
Buddhi Weerasinghe
Fiona White
Keith Witham

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) [4]
Leader of the Council
Weybridge;
Deputy Leader of the Council
Warlingham;
Chair of the Council
Dorking Rural;
Vice-Chair of the Council
Knaphill and Goldsworth West;
APPOINTED SUBSTITUTES [12]
Dorking South and the Holmwoods;
The Dittons;
The Byfleets;
Banstead, Woodmansterne & Chipstead;
Waverley Western Villages;
Camberley East;
Woking North;
Ash;
Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott;
Lower Sunbury and Halliford;
Guildford West;
Worplesdon;

This meeting will be held in public, however numbers will be limited in order to
adhere to Covid-19 social distancing requirements. If you would like to attend,
please contact Joss Butler on 07929 745 197 or via the email address above in
advance of the meeting.
1

Register of planning applications: http://planning.surreycc.gov.uk/

2

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions
under Standing Order 41.

2

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

(Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on (25 March 2021).

3

PETITIONS
To receive any petitions from members of the public in accordance
with Standing Order 84 (please see note 7 below).

4

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any questions received from local government electors
within Surrey in accordance with Standing Order 85 (please see
note 8 below).

5

MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME
To answer any questions received from Members of the Council in
accordance with Standing Order 68.

6

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in
respect of any item(s) of business being considered at
this meeting
NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner)
 Members with a significant personal interest may participate
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that
interest could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

7

MINERALS/WASTE WA/2021/0004 - LAND AT HOMEFIELD
SANDPIT, GUILDFORD ROAD, RUNFOLD, FARNHAM,
SURREY GU10 1PG
Continued use of workshop for use in repairing onsite plant,
machinery and lorries without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2
of planning permission ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011 (as
amended by planning application ref: WA/2020/1753 dated 11
December 2020) to extend the period of development.

3

(Pages 9 - 42)

8

MINERALS/WASTE WA/2021/0005 - LAND AT HOMEFIELD
SANDPIT, GUILDFORD ROAD, RUNFOLD, FARNHAM,
SURREY GU10 1PG

(Pages 43 - 74)

Continued use of two storey extension to side of workshop to
provide welfare facilities without compliance with Conditions 1 and
2 of planning permission ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011
(as amended by planning application ref: WA/2020/1754 dated 14
December 2020) to extend the period of development.

9

WASTE MANAGEMENT APPLICATION REF. MO/2020/1804 LAND AT ROLLS FARMHOUSE, PARTRIDGE LANE,
NEWDIGATE, SURREY RH5 5BW

(Pages 75 116)

Change of use of land, existing storage bays and existing building
for the storage and sorting of green waste. Erection of roof on
storage barn and retaining bund.

10

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Planning & Regulatory Committee will be
on 7 July 2021.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: 8 June 2021

4

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at
reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation
Note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet
site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
filmed. The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council.
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and
Democratic Services at the meeting

NOTES:
1.

Members are requested to let the Democratic Services Officer have the wording of any
motions and amendments not later than one hour before the start of the meeting.

2.

Substitutions must be notified to the Democratic Services Officer by the absent Member
or group representative at least half an hour in advance of the meeting.

3.

Planning officers will introduce their report and be able to provide information or advice to
Members during the meeting. They can also be contacted before the meeting if you
require information or advice on any matter. Members are strongly encouraged to
contact the relevant case officer in advance of the meeting if you are looking to amend or
add conditions or are likely to be proposing a reason for refusal. It is helpful if officers are
aware of these matters in advance so that they can better advise Members both before
and during the meeting.

4.

Members of the public can speak at the Committee meeting on any planning application
that is being reported to the Committee for decision, provided they have made written
representations on the application at least 14 days in advance of the meeting, and
provided they have registered their wish to do so with the Democratic Services Officer no
later than midday on the working day before the meeting. The number of public
speakers is restricted to five objectors and five supporters in respect of each application.

5

5.

Petitions from members of the public may be presented to the Committee provided that
they contain 100 or more signatures and relate to a matter within the Committee’s terms
of reference. The presentation of petitions on the following matters is not allowed: (a)
matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to
Information Act 1985; and (b) planning applications. Notice must be given in writing at
least 14 days before the meeting. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for
further advice.

6.

Notice of public questions must be given in writing at least 7 days before the meeting.
Members of the public may ask one question relating to a matter within the Committee’s
terms of reference. Questions on “confidential” or “exempt” matters and planning
applications are not allowed. Questions should relate to general policy and not detail.
Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for further advice.

7.

On 10 December 2013, the Council agreed amendments to the Scheme of Delegation so
that:
 All details pursuant (applications relating to a previously granted permission) and
non-material amendments (minor issues that do not change the principles of an
existing permission) will be delegated to officers (irrespective of the number of
objections).
 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections, which is in accordance with the
development plan and national polices will be delegated to officers.
 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections that is not in accordance with the
development plan (i.e. waste development in Green Belt) and national policies will be
delegated to officers in liaison with either the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the
Planning & Regulatory Committee.
 Any application can come before committee if requested by the local member or a
member of the Planning & Regulatory Committee.
The revised Scheme of Delegation came into effect as of the date of the Council
decision.

6

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – GUIDANCE ON THE DETERMINATION OF
PLANNING APPLICATIONS
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations
section in the following committee reports.
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when
determining planning applications to “have regard to (a) the provisions of the development plan,
so far as material to the application, (b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to
the application, and (c) any other material considerations”. This section of the 1990 Act must be
read together with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (2004 Act),
which provides that: “If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.”
Development plan
In Surrey the adopted development plan consists of the:
 Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011(comprised of the Core Strategy and Primary
Aggregates Development Plan Documents (DPD))
 Surrey Waste Local Plan 2019-2033 adopted December 2020 (comprised of the Surrey
Waste Local Plan Part 1 Policies and Surrey Waste Local Plan Part 2 Sites) Aggregates
Recycling Joint DPD for the Minerals and Waste Plans 2013 (Aggregates Recycling DPD
2013)
 Any saved local plan policies and the adopted Local Development Documents
(development plan documents and supplementary planning documents) prepared by the
eleven Surrey district/borough councils in Surrey
 South East Plan 2009 Policy NRM6 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (apart
from a policy relating to the former Upper Heyford Air Base in Oxfordshire the rest of the
plan was revoked on 25 March 2013)
 Any neighbourhood plans (where they have been approved by the local community at
referendum)
Set out in each report are the development plan documents and policies which provide the
development plan framework relevant to the application under consideration.
Material considerations
Material considerations will vary from planning application to planning application and can
include: relevant European policy; the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (revised July
2018 and updated February 2019) and subsequent updates; the March 2014 national Planning
Practice Guidance (PPG) and updates; National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) October
2014; Waste Management Plan for England 2021; extant planning policy statements;
Government Circulars and letters to Chief Planning Officers; emerging local development
documents (being produced by Surrey County Council, the district/borough council or
neighbourhood forum in whose area the application site lies).”
National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was updated in February 2019. This revised
NPPF replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and revised in July 2018. It
continues to provide consolidated guidance for local planning authorities and decision takers in
relation to decision-taking (determining planning applications) and in preparing plans (plan
making).
7

The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides
related guidance. The NPPF should be read alongside other national planning policies on
Waste, Travellers, Planning for Schools Development, Sustainable Drainage Systems, Parking,
and Starter Homes .
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 10).
The NPPF makes clear that the planning system has three overarching objectives in order to
achieve sustainable development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways in order to take opportunities to secure net gains across each of the different
objectives. These objectives are economic, social and environmental.
The presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF does not change the
statutory principle that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with
the adopted development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is
one of those material considerations. In determining planning applications the NPPF (paragraph
11) states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important in determining an application are out of date, permission should be
granted unless the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF as a whole.
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 213 states that in determining planning applications, local planning
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the
greater the weight they may be given).
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998
GUIDANCE FOR INTERPRETATION
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights
into English law. It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act. As such, those
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to
claim a breach of their human rights. Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact
of the development against the benefits to the public at large.
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article
1 of Protocol 1. These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act.
Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing. Officers must be satisfied that the
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received
have been properly covered in the report.
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life. This has been interpreted as the
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference. Officers must judge whether the
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8.
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions

8

and possibly other rights. Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions.
These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.
Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective. This
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe.
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be
engaged.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the PLANNING AND REGULATORY
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 25 March 2021 at Remote.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next
meeting.
Members Present:
Tim Hall (Chairman)
Saj Hussain
Mrs Mary Angell
Bernie Muir
Andrew Povey
Mr Keith Taylor
Mrs Rose Thorn
Stephen Cooksey
Ernest Mallett MBE
Mr Tim Evans
Apologies:
Penny Rivers

1/21

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies for absence were received from Penny Rivers.

2/21

MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING [Item 2]
The Committee agreed to amend paragraph 1 to includes the following
wording (in bold) “Additional representations, already covered within the
officer update sheet, are attached to these minutes as Annexes 10, 11, 12,
13 and 14.”
Subject to the above amendment, the Minutes were approved as an accurate
record of the previous meeting.

3/21

PETITIONS [Item 3]
There were none.

4/21

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME [Item 4]
There were none.

5/21

MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME [Item 5]
There were none.

6/21

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS [Item 6]

Page 1 of 7

Page 1

2

2

Dr Povey declared a non-pecuniary interest because he was a trustee of
Surrey Hills Society.
7/21

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL PROPOSAL WO/2020/1090 - SHAW FAMILY
CENTRE, CHOBHAM ROAD, WOKING, SURREY GU21 4AS [Item 9]
Officers:
Dawn Horton-Baker, Senior Planning Officer
Abigail Solway, Transport Development Planning Officer
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer
Joss Butler, Committee Manager
Speakers:
Ian Johnson made representations in objection to the application. The
following key points were made:








That there would be a negative impact on near-by residential
properties
That the application involved the loss of mature trees and hedging and
that there was insufficient space to provide replacement screening.
That the design statement and access statement did not provide
realistic outcomes and that local residents would not appreciate a 13ft
wall being built.
That the ecological statement stated that the intent was to retain
existing trees and important landscaping features and that the
justification for the removal of trees was weak.
That the application noted the sustainability and connectivity of the site
however the Brewery Road Car Park was not taken into account when
considering parking spaces at the Shaw Centre.
That the current proposals needed to be more respectable to
neighbours and the ecological impact.
That Members should defer the application.

Alex Aughterson made representations in objection to the application. The
following key points were made:
 That the placement of the new building would see the loss of garden
space frequently used by families visiting the centre.
 That trees around the garden were set to be removed which would
lead to reduced garden space.
 That residents agreed that a redevelopment was necessary however
concerns raised in the consultation period had not impacted any
planning decisions.
 That staff should be encouraged to use public transport to allow for
additional parking spaces for visitors.
 That residents were concerned that the family centre would not be
centred around families.
Issy Aughterson made representations in objection to the application. The
following key points were made:

Page 2 of 7

Page 2






That residents had the impression that the consultation had not
allowed residents to meaningfully engage with the plans.
That Planning officers had been informed that Statement of
Community Involvement brochures were not delivered to residents.
That the impression from residents was that there was little flexibility to
amend the plans following consultation.
That consideration should be deferred to allow time for sufficient
consideration of the consultation feedback.

The applicant’s agent, Sarah Isherwood, spoke to the Committee in response
to the public speakers’ comments. The following key points were made:











That the Shaw Centres primary function was to allow looked after
children to meet with family and extended family in safe and
comfortable circumstances.
That it was important for looked after children to meet with family to
support their emotional and cultural identify.
That the buildings were no longer fit for purpose and inefficient to
operate and maintain.
Noted technical details of the application proposal.
Stated that the increase in space would allow for foster carers to wait
in a comfortable area while their looked after children were visiting
family.
Highlighted that the existing building on Chobham Road would not be
changed and would continue to provide a service.
That no concerns on heritage grounds had been raised by officers.
That redevelopment would increase the energy efficiency of the
building.
That Woking Borough Council and Surrey County Council Highways
Team had raised no objections to the proposed entrance on Chobham
Road.
Noted that no technical objections had been received.

The Local Member, Colin Kemp, spoke for three minutes. The following key
points were made:







Supported the work and need for regeneration on site to allow for
continued work by the service.
Accepted that the application met planning regulations however felt
the impact on local residents had not been taken into account.
That more discussion were needed with Woking Borough Council
regarding the side access. Woking Borough Council had asked Surrey
County Council to adopt the road for some time.
The location of the building would make it difficult to place some
mature trees along the boundary.
That more information was needed on the number of parking spaces
compared to staff on site.
Proposed to defer consideration of the application to allow more time
to consider its details and impact on local residents.

Page 3 of 7

Page 3

2

2

Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Senior Planning Officer introduced the report and provided a brief
overview of the plans and aerials included in the agenda. Members
noted details related to the boundaries, parking and elevation of the
site.
2. Members asked for clarification on whether local residents were
consulted on the application and why some felt that had not been
engaged. Officers explained that some residents had likely confused
the council’s non-statutory pre-application engagement with the
statutory requirement in terms of publicity and that this was carried
out.
3. Members raised concerns related to the number of trees being
removed from the site. Officers shared a landscaping plan which
provided further detail of the proposals and trees along the site’s
boundary. Members noted that sapling trees had been selected for the
short term in order to provide softening of the building on the
boundary. It was further noted that fencing had been proposed to be
implemented across the full boundary of the site.
4. Officers highlighted that the Historic Buildings Officer had not raised
any objections to the material of the building.
5. Members noted that the current access was on a private road owned
by Woking Borough Council. The road was very narrow with parked
vehicles along its full length which would make it dangerous to pull out
near the junction. Members further noted that it was not clear whether
Woking Borough Council wanted the road to be adopted and that an
adoption process would be very lengthy.
6. Members asked whether it was possible to retain the trees along the
boundary which were proposed to be removed. Officers explained that
the current trees were not worthy of retention and that officers had to
access the application as submitted. Any changes to proposals would
require considerable resiting.
7. The Committee noted that the garden would be replaced by smaller
gardens and asked for further details on the reason. Officers explained
that it was not within the Committee’s remit to consider the use of
gardening on site.
8. A Member of the Committee felt that the application was an excellent
use of the site and agreed that there was a need for small secure
green areas when the service carried out its purpose. The Member
also stated that the level of car parking was necessary to allow for use
of the site by staff.
9. A Member stated that they were concerned that the Committee was
considering details of the application which was not within its remit.
10. Saj Hussain moved a motion for deferral, seconded by Andrew Povey,
to 1. allow officers to further investigate Member concerns related to
whether the existing access could continue to be used to allow for
more space on site and 2. allow for a proper consultation with local
residents to be conducted.
11. A Member of the committee stated that they believed the reasons for
deferral were unreasonable and weak.
12. The motion for deferral was put to a vote and received three votes for,
seven votes against and no abstentions. Therefore the motion for
deferral was lost.

Page 4 of 7

Page 4

The Chairman adjourned the meeting from 12:00pm – 12:05pm
13. The Chairman summarised the debate and listed key concerns before
moving the recommendation. A vote was taken and Members
unanimously voted for the application.
14. Before voting, all Members confirmed that they were present and
heard the full debate.
Actions / further information to be provided:
None.
Resolved:
That, pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and County Planning General
Regulations 1992, planning application ref: WO/2020/1090 be permitted
subject to the conditions from page 161.
8/21

MINERALS/WASTE SP20/00513/SCRVC - CHARLTON LANE WASTE
MANAGEMENT FACILITY, CHARLTON SHEPPERTON, SURREY TW17
8QA [Item 7]
Officers:
Duncan Evans, Senior Planning Officer
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer
Joss Butler, Committee Manager
Speakers:
None.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1.

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the report and provided a
brief summary. Members noted that the application was for the
development of the Charlton Lane Eco Park without compliance with
Condition 4 of planning permission ref: SP16/01220/SCC dated 23
September 2016 in order to amend the hours for the Recyclables
Bulking Facility so Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGV) may enter the
application site gates and to park within the site boundary. Members
noted that the application did not propose changes to the number of
HGVs accessing the site.
2. A Member explained that residents had previously raised concerns as
HGVs were parking outside the site in order to wait for site opening
which was interfering with traffic. Amending the site open times was
suggested to allow HGVs to wait inside the site however some
residents were now concerned that this was cause HGVs to wait
outside the site even earlier.
3. A Member asked whether a condition could be set with the HGV
contractors to state that if they did not comply with conditions related
to parking before entering the site then their contract would be
impacted. Officers explained that the applicant had a routine strategy
with the operator of the HGVs and that if it was breached then the

Page 5 of 7

Page 5

2

2

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

Planning Enforcement Team would investigate. Members further noted
that statutory elements were also afforded to boroughs and districts for
statutory nuisance which allowed for enforcement of particular actions.
Officers highlighted that the number of HGVs which could enter the
site was restricted to seven.
The Committee further noted that the site was not operational until
7:30am and therefore there was no need for HGVs to enter the site
earlier than necessary other than to address the traffic issue.
Members asked whether it was possible to implement a trial period for
the changes in case of any unexpected consequences. Officers went
on to explain that this was a Section 73 application which sought to
vary the hours of operation on a specific area of the site and therefore
a trial period was not possible.
The Chairman summarised the debate before moving the
recommendation. There were nine votes for, one vote against and no
abstentions. Therefore the application was permitted.
Before voting, all Members confirmed that they were present and
heard the full debate.

Actions / further information to be provided:
None.
Resolved:

The Committee voted to permit application SP20/00513/SCRVC
subject to the conditions from page 65.
9/21

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL PROPOSAL EL/2020/3112 - 10 FORMER
ASHLEY ROAD, WALTON ON THAMES, SURREY KT12 1HU [Item 8]
Officers:
Stephanie King, Planning Officer
Tim Dukes, Senior Planning Development Planning Officer
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer
Joss Butler, Committee Manager
Speakers:
None.
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Case officer introduced the report and update sheet and provided
a brief summary. Members noted that the application was for the
development of a new Children's Home and No Wrong Door Facility
with associated parking, access and landscaping.
2. The Chairman moved the recommendation which unanimously voted
for the recommendation and therefore the application was permitted.
3. Before voting, all Members confirmed that they were present and
heard the full debate.
Actions / further information to be provided:

Page 6 of 7

Page 6

2

None.
Resolved:
That, pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and County Planning General
Regulations 1992, planning application ref: EL/2020/3112 be permitted
subject to the following conditions from page 116 and the update sheet.
10/21 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 10]
The date of the next meeting was noted.

Meeting closed at 12.52 pm
_________________________
Chairman

Page 7 of 7

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 7

To:
By:

Date: 16 June 2021

Planning & Regulatory Committee
Planning Development Manager

District(s) WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Electoral Division(s):
Farnham Central
Mr MacLeod

Case Officer:
Jessica Darvill

Purpose:

Grid Ref: 487579 147529

For Decision

Title: MINERALS/WASTE WA/2021/0004
Summary Report
Land at Homefield Sandpit, Guildford Road, Runfold, Farnham, Surrey GU10 1PG
Continued use of workshop for use in repairing onsite plant, machinery and lorries
without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref: WA11/0009 dated
7 April 2011 (as amended by planning application ref: WA/2020/1753 dated 11 December
2020) to extend the period of development.
The Homefield Sandpit is situated to the south of Seale Lane and Guildford Road, and west of
Blighton Lane, Runfold and lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) and Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). Homefield Sandpit was an active
mineral working which is due to be restored to agriculture. Mineral extraction has now ceased,
and the site is undergoing restoration. In 1997 new modern conditions were issued for the site
(ref: WA97/1204 and GU97/1106) as part of the Review of Minerals Permissions (ROMP) under
the Environment Act 1995. Under the ROMP, the whole of the site is to be restored by 2042.
This ROMP decision was appealed in 2000 (ref: M25/1/39) with the decision issued on 5
December 2000.
This application has been submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended) (the 1990 Act). Section 73 (s73) gives an express power to apply for
planning permission for the development of land without complying with conditions attached to
an earlier permission. As such, the development, subject to the s73, has been judged to be
acceptable in principle at an earlier date under planning permission refs: WA11/0009 as
amended by WA/2020/1753.
The purpose of this planning application is to seek an extension of time for the continued use of
the workshop that is currently in place on site until the 22 February 2042, or until the permitted
extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner. The workshop is
used to repair plant, machinery and lorries on site which is essential to the efficiency of the site
operations.
No objections have been received from technical consultees, however, Farnham Town Council,
Seale and Sand Parish Council and Farnham Biodiversity Partnership have objected broadly on
the grounds of breaches of conditions and for the need to restore the site at the earliest possible
opportunity. Five letters of representation were received, which are also broadly concerned with
the progression of restoration of the site. However, this particular application does not impede
the restoration progress of the site and as stated above, the site has already been given a date

Page 9

7

of 2042 for cessation of operations and these facilities are essential to that site. It is also not
considered that the workshop has significant adverse impact to the surrounding AONB or AGLV,
given its context within the site, nor that it gives rise to unacceptable impacts on surrounding
amenity, given its location within the site and the screening with adjacent properties.

7
The recommendation is to PERMIT subject to conditions.

Application Details
Applicant
Chambers Runfold

Date application valid
17 December 2020

Period for Determination
18 March 2021, agreed extension of time until 30 June 2021

Amending Documents
None.

Summary of Planning Issues
This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text
should be considered before the meeting.
Issue

Is this aspect of the
proposal in accordance with
the development plan?

Paragraphs in the report
where this has been
discussed

Landscape Character and
Visual Amenity – Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty
and Area of Great
Landscape Value

Yes

41-56

Landscape Character and
Visual Amenity – Landscape
Character

Yes

57-60

Impact on Residential
Amenities

Yes

61-69

Implication on Green Belt

No

70-87

Illustrative material
Site Plan
Plan 1

Aerial Photographs
Aerial 1

Page 10

Site Photographs
Figure 1 - Workshop and Side Extension Viewing from North West dated November 2020
Figure 2 - Workshop and Side Extension Viewing from Western Side dated November 2020
Figure 3 - Workshop and Side Extension dated November 2020

Background
Site Description
1. Homefield Sand Pit (the site) is situated to the south of Seale Lane (C20) and Guildford
Road (C119), and west of Blighton Lane, Runfold and extends approximately 12.8 hectares
(ha). The site’s north western boundary adjoins the former Jolly Farmer Quarry with the
site’s south western boundary being formed by vegetation surrounding the residential
property Dene Way. The site’s southern boundary is with residential properties in Furze Hill.
The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt, an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). There are no other environmental
designations close to the site, the nearest one being Farnham Golf Course Site of Nature
Conservation Importance (SNCI), which lies over 900 metres (m) to the south east. There
are residential properties within close proximity of the application site area, along the
Guildford Road and Seale Lane to the north and Furze Hill and Sands Road to the south.
The site is well screened by existing vegetation protecting the visual amenity from nearby
residential properties.
2. Homefield Sandpit is an active mineral working which is due to be restored to agriculture by
February 2042. Sand reserves are now exhausted and extraction has ceased. The site has
planning permission to operate part of the sandpit as an inert waste recycling facility (refs:
WA04/1876 and WA09/08560 until December 2020 which form an integral part of the
applicant’s local waste operation.
3. The application site is an existing workshop which lies within Homefield Sand Pit site in the
north west part of the site. To the north of the workshop lies Homefield Sandpit’s car park for
staff and visitors. To the immediate north east of the application site lies the office and
weighbridges. Extending to the south of the application site lies the recycling facility formed
of a mobile plant and press building. To the south east of the workshop are three storage
bays. Beyond the storage bays and recycling area lies the mineral working pit, which is
partly restored. The western boundary of the application site is formed by existing vegetation
with residential properties beyond. The nearest residential property is approximately 25
metres (m) from the workshop, in an elevated position (approximately 5 metres). Tall
evergreen trees surround the workshop along the western and northern boundaries.
4. The application site is a workshop which was permitted under planning permission ref:
GU02/1496 and WA02/1329 which replaced a smaller workshop on site. The larger
workshop was required to accommodate the larger machinery used as part of the operations
at Homefield Sandpit. The existing workshop measures 25m x 16m (400 square metres (m²)
of floor space) and 8.46m in height to the ridge. The workshop is made of external plastisol
and coated galvanised steel sheets in goosewing grey. The current permission (ref:
WA11/0009) allows the workshop to be in use up until the 31 December 2020. A physical
extension was added onto the eastern side of the workshop to provide essential welfare
facilities for site employees (granted under planning permission ref: WA06/1894 dated 1
November 2006).
5. Infilling of Homefield Sandpit is currently taking place in the main part of the site,
concentrating on the eastern boundary. As part of the planning permission for the restoration
scheme, the Environment Agency imposed a requirement to provide an engineered clay seal

Page 11

7

around the whole of the main site. The clay barrier has so far been constructed along the
whole length of the boundary with Blighton Lane, around Sandbach and part of Seale Lane.

7

6. Homefield Sand Pit shares a common floor with the adjoining Jolly Farmer Sandpit to the
west. The Jolly Farmer Sandpit has now largely been restored, apart from the site entrance
infrastructure and land along the eastern boundary immediately adjoining Homefield Sandpit.

Planning History
7. Homefield Sandpit has an extensive planning history. The predominant consents for mineral
working (sand extraction) were originally granted in the 1950’s. For the purpose of this report
relevant planning history is as follows.
8. In 1997 new modern conditions were approved under ref: WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 as
part of the Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP) process introduced under the
Environment Act 1995 in order to provide modern planning conditions for working of the site.
Under the ROMP consent the whole site is to be restored by February 2042. The ROMP
decision was appealed in relation to dust mitigation and stockpiling of materials on the area
known as the ‘west extension’ and to do with the requirement that restoration be carried out
in approved scheme (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39).
9. Planning permission ref: GU01/1114 granted an extension for an area known as the Tennis
Court area, which has now been worked and restored to final levels with the exception of the
supporting batter and planted with trees.
10. In 2003 planning permission (ref: GU02/0490 and WA02/0445) was granted for a detailed
drainage scheme and revised restoration and aftercare scheme.
In connection to waste recycling and associated operational activities this involves:
11. In 2005 planning permission (ref: WA04/1876) was granted for the recycling, storage and
export of 30,000 cubic metres (m³) of waste soils per year and also for the recovery of
15,000m³ of concrete, hardcore and tarmacadam for export and processing off-site.
12. In February 2009, planning permission (ref: WA08/1866) was granted for the resiting of
storage bays for the storage of imported limestone scalpings and their retention on site; and
the installation of a wheelwash facility and resiting of existing wheel spinner, until 31
December 2020.
13. On 16 October 2009, planning permission (ref: WA09/0856) was granted for the temporary
use of approximately 1.54ha of land for the screening and washing of inert waste,
comprising: power screen; washing plant; filter press building, associated tanks and
equipment; conveyors and stockpile areas; underground ducting; storage bays and
associated hardstanding areas.
14. On 16 February 2011, planning permission (ref: WA10/2108) was granted for continued
temporary use of land for the overnight parking of up to eight vehicles until 31 December
2020.
15. On 17 February 2011, planning permission (ref:WA10/2109) was granted for continued
temporary use of two storey extension to side of workshop to provide welfare facilities until
31 December 2020.
16. On 7 April 2011, planning permission (ref: WA11/0009) was granted for continued use of
workshop for use in repairing on site plant, machinery and lorries until 31 December 2020.

Page 12

The Proposal
17. The application subject to this report is submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (the 1990 Act). Section 73 (s73) gives an express power to
apply for planning permission for the development of land without complying with conditions
attached to an earlier permission. As such, the development, subject to the s73, will have
been judged to be acceptable in principle at an earlier date.
18. In this regard the application seeks consent for the continued use of the workshop for use in
repairing onsite plant, machinery and lorries without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of
planning permission ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011 (as amended by planning
application ref: WA/2020/1753 dated 11 December 2020) to extend the time period of the
development so it aligns with the date of 2042 or until the permitted extraction, landfilling and
restoration operations cease, whichever is sooner. No alterations are proposed to the
building.
19. Condition 1 of the consent (ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011) states:
The development herby approved shall be caried out in all respects strictly in accordance
with the following plans/drawings:
-

-

Replacement Workshop Roof Plan Elevations, Drawing Number 1028-20 dated January
2003 and received on 12 February 2003 (submitted as part of application number
GU02/0496 and WA02/1329)
Replacement Workshop Ground Section, Drawing Number 1028-21 dated Feb 2003 and
received on 21 February 2003 (submitted as part of application number GU02/0496 and
WA02/1329).

Reason: To ensure the permission is implemented in accordance with the terms of the
application and to enable the County Planning Authority to exercise planning control over the
development pursuant to the Surrey Minerals Local Plan 1993 Policy 1, Surrey Waste Plan
2008 Policies CW6, DC2 and DC3 and the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 Policies C1,
C3 and D1.
20. Condition 2 of the consent (ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011) states:
This permission shall be for a limited period expiring on 31 December 2020 or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner. At that
time the use of the building as a workshop shall cease and the building shall be removed
from the site, and the land restored in accordance with the approved restoration scheme for
the site.
Reason: To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policy 1 of the Surrey Minerals Local Plan
1993 and Policy CW6 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2008.
21. The applicant is seeking an extension of time to align with the permission of the final
restoration of the site until the 22 February 2042, or until the permitted extraction, landfilling
and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with the land restored in accordance
with the approved restoration scheme on site. The workshop provides a covered space
where plant and machinery which are used as part of the ongoing restoration of Homefield
Sandpit site alongside plant used for the waste activities at the site, can be repaired and
maintained. This application does not seek to modify either the building or activities that are
carried out in the workshop but to retain it on site for an extended period of time. Retention

Page 13

7

of the workshop would not generate new capacity or development at the site or increase
vehicle movements associated with activities.

7

22. Section 73 of the 1990 Act makes clear that in considering a s73 planning application, the
County Planning Authority (CPA) shall consider only the question of the conditions subject to
which planning permission should be granted, the s73 must be determined according to the
current development plan and other material considerations. Therefore, the key issues to
consider are whether the proposed variations to Conditions 1 and 2 of the planning consent
would result in an adverse impact on amenity or the environment.
23. Accordingly the applicant has submitted details of the need for the existing workshop to be
maintained within its location of the Green belt and Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), as well as providing a supporting statement with regards to impact to local
communities and the environment.
24. In seeking variation to Conditions 1 and 2 of the consent, the applicant has proposed that
Condition 1 be reworded to include new plans and drawings of the workshop building and
that Condition 2 be amended to insert a new date for when the workshop should be removed
aligning it with the 2042 date or until the permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration
operations cease whichever is sooner.

Consultations and Publicity
District Council
25. Waverley Borough Council

No objection, subject to appropriate
conditions to ensure that the land is restored
in accordance to approved restoration
scheme and no adverse harm to visual or
residential amenity.

26. Guildford Borough Council

No Comment.

Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory)
27. Landscape

No Objection, provided the facilities are all
ancillary and fundamental to the ongoing
landfill and restoration of the site.

28. South East Water

No Response Received.

29. Thames Water

No Response Received.

30. Surrey Hills AONB Office

No Objection.

Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups
31. Farnham Town Council

Objection, see below for comments.

32. Seale & Sands Parish Council

Objection, see below for comments.

33. Seale, Sands & Runfold Amenity Society

No Response Received.

34. Tongham Parish Council

No Response Received.

Page 14

35. Farnham Biodiversity Partnership

Objection, see below for comments.

Farnham Town Council objection summarised as follows:






Priority to restore the site as soon as possible and not continue operations, the 2042
date is the latest possible date permitted for restoration.
Stock piling of materials well above restoration levels. The material is suitable for landfill
so progression of restoration should be priority due to the location of the site in the
Green Belt, AONB and AGLV.
An assessment of the void and materials to be undertaken to fully understand the extent
of operation needed to restore the site in line with NPPF (2019) paragraph 205(e).
Small scale recycling activities were only ever expected to provide landfilling and
restoration following completion of sand extraction.
Request for an updated restoration and site closure plan.

Seale and Sands Parish Council objection summarised as follows:







Need for a thorough review of current site status, progress over the last 5 years towards
final restoration and strategy for completion of landfilling and restoration to an
appropriate quality before any extension of operations is considered.
The proposal conflicts with NPPF (2019) Paragraph 205(e), and no consideration in line
with this to conditions have been provided regarding restoration and aftercare.
Breaches of permissions and conditions in place from the both the EA and the CPA
(including overfilling), with no active enforcement action taken.
Request for site closure / restoration plan
Inconsistencies between CPA and the EA in terms of permitting documents with regards
to waste storage on site and capacity from the recycling facility on site.
Concern with flooding encountered within the Parish with excess water fed into
Homefield, what plans are therefore controlling excess water in the future?

Farnham Biodiversity Partnership objection summarised as follows:
 The proposal conflicts with Section 1 of the NPPF (2019) regarding facilitating the
sustainable use of minerals, and particularly paragraphs 204(h) 205(e).
 Issue raised that the ROMP review of 1997, consent for use of the site was extended to
2042 without public consultation and is not consistent with NPPF paragraph 205(e).
 Concern raised regarding progression towards restoration and site closure plan, raised
the need to identify the earliest possible date for restoration.
 Concern raised over change of use from a mineral extraction and restoration to a
recycling facility.
 Lack of control of activities on site particularly regarding breaches with overfilling.
 Noted that there is overfilling, particularly at the Eastern End and Tennis Court extension
areas. Where trees were previously planted they have been covered by fill material.
 Raised issue that there is a lack of progression towards restoration, particularly given the
locational context of the sit being in the AONB, AGLV and Green Belt.
 Restoration plans need to be updated to support restoration to current standards and to
address current priorities, particularly regarding biodiversity and climate change.
 Request for a community liaison group.
Officer’s comments: Whilst the Officer notes the objections raised by Farnham Town Council,
Seale and Sands Parish Council and Farnham Biodiversity Partnership, the objections raised
are not specific to the provision of the continued temporary use of the workshop on site which is
to provide ancillary facilities to support the ongoing restoration of the site, but rather more
broadly relate to the progression of the restoration and the materials on site. Regarding

Page 15

7

7

breaches and overfilling and restoration of the site, this relates to the WA/97/1204 and
GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39) and the respective conditions. There is
ongoing site monitoring on site and the CPA are working proactively with the applicant regarding
the restoration of the site and the submission of a periodic review with regards to the ROMP
procedure. This application, however does not concern the breaches or agreed restoration
levels of the site, rather concerns solely the continued siting of the temporary use of the
workshop to provide ancillary facilities towards the restoration of the site.

Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public
36. The application was publicised by the posting of 2 site notices and an advert was placed in
the Surrey Advertiser on 29 January 2021. A total of 68 of owner/occupiers of neighbouring
properties were directly notified by letter. The site notices were erected on the 29 January
2021. To date 5 letters of representation have been received by the County Planning
Authority (CPA).
37. The representations received can be summarised as follows:
a) Concern that the proposal goes beyond the original use of the land in extracting
aggregates and is developing into an industrial plant site for reprocessing waste.
b) Concern that the application is delaying the restoration of the site.
c) Concern about the impact this application has on the context of the local surroundings
being an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB); an Area of Great Landscape
Value (AGLV); and the Metropolitan Green Belt.
d) Concern raised that sand extraction from the site has now ceased (some 5 years ago),
and the approval of recycling activities (back in 2005) to support this disposal of inert
waste as landfill as means of restoration, has led to the recycling activities becoming a
dominant activity impacting the local surroundings (AONB; AGLV; and Green Belt) and
maybe a change of use.
e) Issue raised that SCC has given prior approval for the removal of an expiry date as a
Condition for these permissions as a Non-Material Amendment (NMA) without
consultation with neighbouring properties.
f)

In order to retain control of the operations being carried out at Homefield an early date
should be included for expiry for the continued use of the workshop.

g) Paragraph 3.11 of the Planning Support Statement states that the closest residential
property lies 60-70 metres to the north and south of the site. This is incorrect as there
are properties to the east (off Guildford and Sands Road) that are much closer.
h) Noted that there is overfilling, particularly at the Eastern End and Tennis Court extension
areas. Where trees were previously planted they have been covered by fill material.
Restoration of the Western extension has not been complete with little / no screening
bund at the southern boundary fronting properties in Furze Hill.
i)

Issues of ongoing planning breaches regarding overfilling and trees covered by infill.

j)

Issue raised concerning contradiction with the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) Section 1 of ‘Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals’ (in particular
paragraphs 204(h) and 205(e) which require restoration of mineral sites at the earliest
possible opportunity

Page 16

k) Issue raised that the ROMP review of 1997, consent for use of the site was extended to
2042 without public consultation and is not consistent with NPPF paragraph 205(e).
In regards to points (a), (b), (f), (j) and (k) these concerns relate to the principle of the
development which was permitted under the parent permissions. A Review of Minerals
Permission (ROMP) was undertaken under refs: WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 in 1997 as part of
the Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP) process introduced under the Environment Act 1995
in order to provide modern planning conditions for working of the site. Paragraph 1861 of the
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) states that the only restrictions on planning
conditions that may be imposed as part of the review of planning conditions is that all final
applications must include a condition that the winning and working of minerals or depositing of
mineral waste must cease no later than 22 February 2042. This date stems from earlier, not
replaced, Minerals Planning Guidance 5. When ROMP application WA97/1204 and GU97/1106
was submitted to the County Planning Authority, it was within the applicant’s ability to seek an
end date for mineral working and restoration until February 2042 and this is what was given in
Condition 2. Therefore, the end date to the working mineral permission for the site is 22
February 2042, and this proposal for the continued use of the workshop is to provide ancillary
facilities to assist with the restoration of the site.
In regards to point (c) concerning the context of the location of the proposal, this is covered in
detail within the relevant sections of this report including Green Belt and Landscape Character
and Visual Amenity.
In regards to point (d) concerning recycling activities, this relates to the 2005 planning
permission (ref: WA04/1876) which was granted for the recycling, storage and export of 30,000
cubic metres (m³) of waste soils per year and also for the recovery of 15,000m³ of concrete,
hardcore and tarmacadam for export and processing off-site, and therefore is not the subject of
this planning application, regarding the continued provision of a workshop to provide ancillary
facilities to assist with the ongoing restoration of the site.
In regards to point (e) concerning the non-material amendment (NMA) applications. As the
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) states, an application to make a non-material
amendment is not a planning permission, thus the existing Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 provisions relating to statutory
consultation and publicity do not apply. Therefore, the Planning Authorities have discretion in
whether and how they chose to inform other parties and seek their views. In terms of the NMAs,
they addressed an amendment to the description of development to remove the end dates only,
and Officers are mindful that the time limits remain intact on the existing planning permission
conditions. Therefore, the planning permissions granted to the site, and the conditions attached
to them, remain intact and publicity was not required.
In regards to point (g) concerning the location of nearby residential properties, this has been
noted, however, the description of these distances relates to the recycling area which is not the
subject area of this report. The impact of the workshop proposal is considered within the
residential amenities section.
In regards to points (h) and (i) regarding breaches and overfilling and restoration of the site, this
relates to the WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39) and the
respective conditions. There is ongoing site monitoring on site and the CPA are working
proactively with the applicant regarding the restoration of the site and the submission of a
periodic review with regards to the ROMP procedure. This application, however does not
concern the breaches or agreed restoration levels of the site, rather concerns solely the
continued siting of the workshop to provide ancillary facilities towards the restoration of the site.

1

Paragraph: 186 Reference ID: 27-186-20140306

Page 17

7

Planning Considerations

7

38. The guidance on the determination of planning applications, found at the end of this report,
is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with the following
paragraphs.
39. In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists of
the Surrey Waste Plan (2020), Surrey Minerals Plan and Core Strategy (2011), the
Waverley Local Plan Part 1 (2018); Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 (saved policies); and
Farnham Neighbourhood Plan 2013-2032.
40. In considering this application the acceptability of the proposed development will be
assessed against relevant development plan policies and material considerations. In
assessing the application against development plan policy it will be necessary to determine
whether the proposed measures for mitigating any environmental impact of the development
are satisfactory. In this case the main planning considerations are: the impact to the Green
Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), Area of Great Landscape Value, and
adverse impact on amenity or the environment from the proposal.

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER AND VISUAL AMENITY
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SMP2011)
Policy MC2 – Spatial Strategy – protection of Key Environmental Interests in Surrey
Policy MC14 – Reducing the Adverse Impacts of Mineral Development
Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 14 – Protecting Communities and the Environment
Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy RE3 – Landscape Character
Surrey AONB Management Plan 2020-2025
Policy P1 – Planning Management Policies
Policy P6 - Planning Management Policies
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment (LCA) 2015
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment Waverley Borough 2015

AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY (AONB) and AREA OF GREAT LANDSCAPE
VALUE (AGLV)
Planning Policy
41. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 170 states that planning
policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by: (a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the
development plan); and (b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside,
and the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic

Page 18

and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and
woodland.
42. Paragraph 172 of the NPPF goes on to state that great weight should be given to conserving
and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to these
issues. The scale and extent of development within these designated areas should be
limited. Planning permission should be refused for major development other than in
exceptional circumstances, and where it can be demonstrated that the development is in the
public interest. Consideration of such applications should include an assessment of: a) the
need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and the impact
of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy; b) the cost of, and scope for,
developing outside the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some other way; and c)
any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and
the extent to which that could be moderated.
43. The test within Paragraph 172 removes the presumption in favour of sustainable
development as set out in paragraph 11 footnote 6 of the NPPF 2019. The test in paragraph
172 is more restrictive if a proposal is in the AONB is defined as ‘major’.
44. There is no definition for whether a proposal is a ‘major development’. The NPPF (2019)
outlines in footnote 55 that the definition a major development is up to discretion of the
decision maker, taking into account its nature, scale and setting and whether it could have a
significant adverse impact on the purposes for which the area has been designated or
defined. Case law also establishes that the NPPF militates against importing the definition of
‘major development’ in the Development Management Procedure Order but to take a
common sense approach. Whilst the Town and Country Planning (General Development
Procedure) (Amendment) (England) Order 2010 SI 2184 is useful in providing some
guidance as to the meaning of ‘major development’ (“the winning and working of minerals or
the use of land for mineral working deposits” and also “development carried out on a site
having an area of 1 hectare or more”). When taking a common sense approach, Officers
consider the development not to constitute as major development for the purposes of the
AONB given the size of the proposed workshop. Officers recognise that the workshop would
cause some harm to the AONB and AGLV in principle however given the limited size and the
need for the workshop to provide a space for the servicing and maintenance of vehicles
associated with the restoration of the landfill site, this harm would be militated by these
factors.
45. Policy MC2 from the SMP2011 states that mineral development that may have direct or
indirect significant adverse impacts on an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty will only be
permitted if (i) it has been demonstrated to be in the public interest; and (ii) the applicant can
establish that development and restoration can be carried out to the highest standard and in
a manner consistent with safeguarding the specific relevant interests. Policy MC14 of the
SMP2011 states that mineral development will be permitted only where a need has been
demonstrated and the applicant has provided information sufficient for the mineral planning
authority to be satisfied that there would be no significant adverse impacts arising from the
development. The policy goes on to state that in determining planning application for mineral
development, potential impacts relating to noise, dust, illumination, and the natural
environment will be considered.
46. Policy 14 from the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 states that planning permission for waste
development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that:
a) It would be consistent with relevant national planning policy with respect to the
following key environmental assets:
i. Protected landscapes of the Surrey Hills AONB

Page 19

7

b) It would not result in unacceptable impacts on communities and the environment.
The term ‘unacceptable impact’ should be interpreted in accordance with current
national and local planning policy and planning guidance relevant to the following
matters:

7
i. Public amenity and safety (including noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration,
illumination, public open space and the rights of way network).
v. The landscape including impacts on the appearance, quality and character of
the landscape and any features that contribute to its distinctiveness, including
character areas defined at the national and local levels.
vi. The natural environment, including biodiversity and geological conservation
interests, including site of local importance (LNR, SNCI, RIGS).
viii. Land and soil resources including impacts on their use, quality and integrity
and including opportunities for remediation, the need to protect any best and
most versatile agricultural land, and the need to address existing and
potential contamination and land stability issues.
ix. Cumulative impacts arising from the interactions between waste
developments, and between waste developments and other forms of
development.
47. Policy RE3 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites states that
new development must respect and where appropriate, enhance the distinctive character of
the landscape in which it is located. Part (i) of Policy RE3 outlines that the protection and
enhancement of the character and qualities of the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) that is of national importance will be a priority and will include the application
of national planning policies together with the Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan. The
setting of the AONB will be protected where development outside its boundaries harm public
views from or into the AONB. Part (ii) of Policy RE3 outlines that the same principles for
protecting the AONB will apply within an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV), which will
be retained for its own sake and as a buffer to the AONB, until there is a review of the Surrey
Hills AONB boundary, whilst recognising that the protection of the AGLV is commensurate
with its status as a local landscape designation. In this respect the setting of the AGLV will
be protected.
48. The Surrey Hills AONB Board have produced the Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan
2020 - 2025. Whilst this document does not form part of the Development Plan it is a
material consideration in the decision-making process for planning application proposals
within the AONB. The Management Plan outlines that the primary purpose of AONB
designation is ‘to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the area’ in line with Section
82 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CRoW Act). The Management Plan also
includes Planning Management Polices. Policy P1 (Planning Management Polices) states
that in considering planning applications great weight will be attached to any adverse impact
that the development proposal would have on the amenity, landscape and scenic beauty of
the AONB and the need for its enhancement. Policy P6 states that development that would
spoil the setting of the AONB by harming public views into or from the AONB will be resisted.
Details Submitted
49. The applicant has submitted details of the location site within the AONB and AGLV
landscape within the Overarching Planning Support Statement v1 dated December 2020.
50. The applicant has identified that there is a need for the ancillary workshop facilities to
support the ongoing restoration of the site by 22 February 2042 and ensure that the
landscape character is reinstated following the provision of the mineral permission. The

Page 20

workshop itself is temporary and would be removed by 22 February 2042 or when the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease, whichever is sooner. This
combined with the well screened location that the workshop is sited in, assist minimises
potential detrimental impacts to the environment, landscape and recreational opportunities.

7
Evaluation
51. Due to the site’s location, an assessment as to whether it is appropriate development within
the AONB and AGLV, and does not cause significant adverse impacts to the character of the
AONB and AGLV, as set out in paragraph 172 of the NPPF, is required.
52. As set out in Paragraph 172 of the NPPF the proposal needs to be considered in terms of
the following:


The need for the development – The workshop building provides an indoor space
where plant and machinery and vehicles can be services and maintained in the dry.
These plant, machinery and vehicles are associated with the day to day operations of
Homefield Sandpit, including the restoration of the site. The need for the continued
use of the workshop is to provide ancillary support with delivering the restoration of
the site to ensure that restoration is delivered efficiently and effectively on site.
Officers recognised that the applicant has requested an end date of 2042 for
retention of the workshop and this is to align with the restoration date for Homefield
Sandpit as stipulated in WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal
decision M25/1/39).



The scope for developing outside the designated area – The workshop building
provides ancillary facilities to maintain the machinery and plant required to facilitate
the ongoing restoration of the site. If the workshop was to be located outside of
Homefield Sandpit and the AONB, the ability to repair plant and machinery would be
hindered and would require machinery to be taken off site to another location to be
maintained. This could cause disruption to local highway network and potential
delays to the time taken to restore the site.



Detrimental effect on the environment, landscape, and recreational opportunities –
The permission sought is for a temporary period of time for which will support the
ongoing restoration activities to be maintained ahead of the extant mineral
permission on site until 22 February 2042, after which the workshop building would
be removed and the land reinstated. Due to the temporary nature of the development
the workshop would not have an irreversible adverse impact to the environment,
landscape or recreational opportunities. In addition, the location of the workshop is
well screened and at a lower contour level to the surrounding area which also assists
with minimising the impact on the environment and the landscape.

53. Policy MC2 of the Surrey Mineral Plan (2011) outlines the test criteria for mineral
development within the AONB. Officers have considered the proposal in terms of this criteria
as outlined below:


Demonstrated to be in the public interest – The proposal is seeking to support the
ongoing restoration of the mineral site, of which is in the public’s interest in terms of
restoring the site.



Establish that the development and restoration can be carried out to the highest
standard and in a manner consistent with safeguarding the specific relevant interests
- By having the workshop on site it enables the machinery to be maintained and
repaired so that they can work as efficiently as possible which will assist in
maintaining efficient workings for restoration.

Page 21

7

54. The Surrey Hills AONB Office were consulted on the application and stated in their
consultation response that given that the site is progressively restored, the temporary
landscape impact will diminish in time. In addition, it is recognised that the building is well
screened within the Surrey Hills AONB and are located at a low level that cannot be readily
seen in the locality. Therefore, in this respect the Surrey Hill AONB Office raise no objection.
55. In terms of meeting the requirements of Policy RE3 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part
1 Strategic Policies and Sites, the proposed workshop seeks to minimise disruption to the
landscape by being well screened and being situated at a lower contour level to the
surrounding areas. The development will be temporary in nature and provides ancillary
facilities to the restoration of the site. In this respect Officers consider that the proposal still
seeks to respect the local landscape and contributes to the restoration of the site which will
seek to maintain the local landscape designation.
56. Officers are satisfied that there is a need for the retention of the workshop building to assist
in providing a covered space for the maintenance and repair of plant and machinery used at
Homefield Sandpit in connection with the ongoing restoration of the site and in connection
with other plant and machinery used on site. The workshop is well screened so would not be
obvious or incongruous in the landscape. Officers accept that the development would have
some detrimental effect on the landscape and would not enhance the natural beauty of the
AONB during its retention. Nevertheless, given its temporary nature and the limited degree
of impact, Officers do not consider that the proposed workshop would have a significant
impact on the conservation of the natural beauty of the landscape. In this respect, Officers
consider that the applicant has suitably demonstrated the need for the development and
there is no suitable alternative solution that exists to provide the required services the
workshop offers.

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER
Planning Policy
57. The Surrey Landscape Character Assessment (LCA) Waverley Borough 2015 is a
comprehensive assessment of the landscape character of the county. The application site
lies within the Shackleford Open Greensand Hills LCA which is an irregular section of land
west of Guildford. The key characteristics of this landscape include; a diverse landscape
which is predominately pastoral but with areas of arable farmland, woodland, heathland, golf
courses, parkland, nurseries and paddocks and quarry workings. Field pattern of mainly
medium to large regular fields with straight boundaries typical of parliamentary enclosure
bounded by hedgerows with hedgerow trees or by fences. This landscape character is of a
rural, peaceful landscape type.
Evaluation

58. The County Landscape Architect was consulted on the proposal. The County Landscape
Architect notes the workshop subject to this application is sited to the north western part of
the quarry site, in close proximity to the site entrance. This part of the quarry is recognised to
be relatively well-screened by established perimeter vegetation and is not prominent in
public views from the surrounding areas. The County Landscape Architect recommends that
the perimeter vegetation is maintained (an enhanced where appropriate) to maintain the
current screening of the site.
59. The County Landscape Architect (CLA) also acknowledges that whilst the quarry site
remains largely unrestored in its character, including the facilities that this application refers

Page 22

to, it detracts from and is at odds with the prevailing landscape character of the surrounding
area, including the AONB. The CLA goes on to comment that this is counterbalanced from a
visual amenity perspective by the site’s relatively well screened situation. The CLA states
that provided that these facilities are ancillary and fundamental to the approved mineral
development and ongoing landfilling and restoration of the site, he does not object to the
proposal from a landscape perspective. These comments are made in relation to both
landscape character and the AONB.
60. Officers recognise the need to provide suitable ancillary facilities to support the ongoing
restoration works of the site, and do not consider there to be a suitable alternative solution in
providing these ancillary facilities that the workshop provides. In terms of the impact on the
landscape character as outlined in the LCA 2015, Officers consider the temporary nature of
the workshop to be located on site combined with the provision of good vegetation screening
of the workshop from the surrounding areas that the impact on the landscape character is
minimised and would not cause detrimental impacts.

IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITIES
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SMP2011)
Policy MC14 – Reducing the Adverse Impacts of Mineral Development
Policy MC17 – Restoring Mineral Workings
Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 13 – Sustainable Design
Policy 14 – Protecting Communities and the Environment
Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy D1 – Environmental Implications of Development (Saved 2002 policy)

Planning Policy
61. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 170 states that planning
policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by:
a) Protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in
the development plan).
b) Recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and
other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and
woodland.
e) Preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil,
air, water or noise pollution or land instability.
62. Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2019) states that the development should be appropriate for its
location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on

Page 23

7

health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of
the site of the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they
should:

7

a) Mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impact resulting from noise from
new development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on
health and the quality of life2.
b) Identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by
noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason.
c) Limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark
landscapes and nature conservation.
63. Paragraph 205 part (e) of the NPPF (2019) states that when considering proposals for
mineral extraction, mineral planning authorities should provide for restoration and aftercare
at the earliest opportunity.
64. Policy MC14 of the SMP2011 states that mineral development will be permitted only where a
need has been demonstrated and the applicant has provided information sufficient for the
mineral planning authority to be satisfied that there would be no significant adverse impacts
arising from the development. The policy goes on to state that in determining planning
application for mineral development, potential impacts relating to noise, dust, illumination
and the natural environment will be considered. Policy MC17 of the Surrey Minerals Plan
2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) states that restoration of mineral
workings should be completed at the earliest opportunity and progressive restoration will be
required where appropriate.
65. Policy 13 of the Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies states that all proposals for waste
development should demonstrate that the (i) development is of a scale, form and character
appropriate to its location. Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies outline
that the development should be consistent with relevant national planning policies in respect
to the landscape characteristics and should not result in unacceptable impacts on
communities and the environment including impacts on public amenity and safety.
66. Saved Policy D1 from the Waverley Borough Council Local plan (2002) states that the
council will have regards to the environmental implications of development and will promote
and encourage enhancement of the environment. Development will not be permitted where it
would result in material detriment to the environment by virtue of:
a) Loss of damage to important environmental assets (including areas of conservation,
ecological or landscape value).
b) Harm to visual character and distinctiveness of locality, particularly in respect of the
design and scale of the development and its relationship to its surroundings.
c) Loss of general amenity, including material loss or natural light and privacy enjoyed
by neighbours and disturbance resulting from the emission of noise, light or vibration.
d) Levels of traffic which are incompatible with the local highway network or cause
significant environmental harm by virtue of noise and disturbance.
e) Potential pollution of air, land, water, including that arising from light pollution and
from the storage and use of hazardous substances.
Details Submitted
2

See Explanatory Note to the Noise Policy Statement for England (Department for Environment, Food &
Rural Affairs, 2010).

Page 24

67. The existing workshop on site measures 25m x 16m (400 square metres (m²) of floor space)
and 8.46m in height to the ridge. The workshop is made of external plastisol and coated
galvanised steel sheets in goosewing grey. The proposal does not include any amendments
to the existing workshop in terms of both structure and operational use. The nearest
residential property is approximately 25 metres (m) from the workshop, in an elevated
position (approximately 5 metres) and the boundary side of the workshop is well screened by
vegetation to assist in screening the visual impact from nearby residential properties.
Evaluation
68. The workshop provides an area to repair on-site plant, machinery and lorries which
facilitates effective maintenance and the efficiency of the working and restoration operations
at the site. Under cover maintenance is more preferable in amenity terms than if plant and
machinery were to be repaired in the open, especially with regards to the noise and dust
impacts. The building is fully clad and has a door that can be shut during noisy operations. In
addition, the siting of the workshop in a lower contour level from nearby residential
properties and the vegetation that surrounds the workshop to the western boundary provides
screening that will assist with mitigating visual and noise impacts from the workshop. No
further operational works are proposed as part of this application, only works to continue to
restore the site. Officers propose that should planning permission be granted, Conditions 3,
4 and 5 of planning permission ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011 be brought forward to
ensure protection to the environment with regards to noise, hours of operation and its use.
These conditions outline the following:


Condition 3: The workshop hereby permitted shall be used solely in connection with
the repair and maintenance of vehicles, plants and machinery engaged in mineral
extraction, landfilling and restoration activities and for no other purpose.



Condition 4: The noise arising from the workshop building hereby permitted when
measured at, or recalculated at a point of no less than 3.5m from the façade of any
noise sensitive building shall not exceed 50 LAeq (1/2 hour).



Condition 5: The repair and maintenance of vehicles, plant and machinery shall only
be carried out within the workshop building between the hours of 0800-1800 Monday
to Friday (excluding public holidays) and 0800-1200 hours on Saturdays. This
condition shall not prevent the carrying out, with written permission of the County
Planning Authority, of urgent repairs to machinery at times other than stated above.
No audible sound shall be emitted at any other times.

69. In this respect, Officers are satisfied that the retention of the existing workshop on site for
ancillary purposes for the ongoing restoration of the site would not give rise to significant
adverse impacts with regards to noise and dust on the local environment and local amenity
Officers propose to impose conditions with regards to noise and operations. In this respect
Officers consider that the development accords with the requirements of the Development
Plans including saved Policy DC1 from the Waverley Local Plan (2002); Policy 14 of the
Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies and the NPPF (2019).

GREEN BELT
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SPD2011)
Policy MC3 – Spatial Strategy – Mineral Development in Green Belt
Policy MC17 – Restoring Mineral Workings

Page 25

7

Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 9 – Green Belt

7

Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy RE2 – Green Belt

Planning Policy
70. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 133 states that great
importance is attached to areas of Green Belt, where the fundamental aim of the Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. Paragraph 134 goes on
to outline the 5 purposes that the Green Belt serves including:


To check the unrestricted sprawl of large built up areas;



To prevent the neighbouring towns merging into one another;



To assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;



To preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and



To assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban
land.

71. Paragraph 143 of NPPF (2019) outlines that inappropriate development is by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.
Paragraph 144 goes on to state that when considering any planning application, local
planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt. ‘Very Special Circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt
by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal is clearly
outweighed by other circumstances.
72. NPPF (2019) paragraph 146 states that certain other forms of development are also not
inappropriate in the Green Belt provided that they preserve its openness and do not conflict
with the purposes of including land within it. Whilst this includes (a) mineral extraction, this
proposal is not for mineral extraction but for the retention of a building. As such Officers do
not consider that this proposal would fall within one of the exemptions set out in paragraph
146 of the NPPF.
73. Paragraph 205 states that when determining planning applications, great weight should be
given to the benefits of mineral extraction, including the economy. In considering proposals
for mineral extraction, minerals planning authorities should (e) provide for restoration and
aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to high environmental standards,
through the application of appropriate conditions.
74. Paragraph 6 of the National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) states that Green Belts have
special protection in respect to development, and suitable sites and areas outside of the
Green Belt should be sought first. Paragraph 7 goes on to state that landfill sites are
restored to beneficial uses at the earliest opportunity and to high environmental standards
through the application of appropriate conditions where necessary.
75. Planning Policy MC3 from the SMP2011 outlines that mineral extraction in the Green Belt
will only be permitted where the highest environmental standards of operation are
maintained and the land restored to beneficial after-uses consistent with Green Belt

Page 26

objectives within agreed time limits. Proposals in the Green Belt for mineral development
other than extraction and primary treatment, will only be permitted where the applicant has
demonstrated that very special circumstances exist to outweigh the harm by reasons of its
inappropriateness and any other harm.

7
76. Planning Policy MC17 from the SMP2011 states that a site should be restored and managed
to a high standard. Restoration of mineral workings should be completed at the earliest
opportunity and progressive restoration will be required where appropriate. The applicant will
be expected to agree a scheme with the mineral planning authority detailing how the land
will be restored and managed before, during and after working.
77. Planning Policy 9 from the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies, states that planning
permission will not be granted for inappropriate waste management development in the
Green Belt unless it is shown that very special circumstances exist ‘Very Special
Circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm caused to the Green Belt by reason
of inappropriateness and any other harm resulting from the proposal is clearly outweighed by
other considerations associated with the proposal, either on their own or in combination.
78. Policy RE2 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites, states
that certain forms of development are considered to be appropriate in the Green Belt
Proposals will be permitted where they do not conflict with the exceptions listed in the
national planning policy.
Details Submitted
79. The applicant has submitted details of a Green Belt Statement within the Overarching
Planning Support Statement v1 dated December 2020. The application site for the workshop
for ancillary purposes has previously been deemed acceptable under planning permission
WA11/0009.
80. The applicant has identified that mineral extraction is not considered inappropriate in the
Green Belt provided the development preserves its openness and does not conflict with the
purposes of including land within it. However, as outlined above, this proposal is not for
extraction of minerals or primary processing, therefore, in accordance with Policy MC3, the
proposal should only be permitted where very special circumstances have been
demonstrated which outweighs the harm by virtue of its inappropriateness, openness and
any other harm. The proposal to retain the existing workshop does not seek to generate new
capacity of operations on site but seeks to sustain existing capacity to support the
restoration of the site connected to the life of the Homefield minerals permission and
outstanding restoration conditions.
81. The applicant outlines that very special circumstances associated with this application
include;


The need to restore the site – the workshop is identified as an ancillary component in
supporting the ongoing landfilling and restoration of the site. The restoration of which
is linked to the existing mineral consent of WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 dated 1997
(as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39), with restoration of the site to be
completed by 22 February 2042. Without the siting of the workshop at Homefield
there is no provision on site to support the repairing of the onsite plant, machinery
and lorries which would prevent the ability to restore the site.



Location of the workshop in relation to the restoration of the site – it would be
inefficient to locate the workshop outside of Homefield Sandpit, there are no other
suitable sites that are non-Green Belt identified to locate the ancillary facilities that
the workshop provides.

Page 27



7

Impact on openness and visual amenities is temporary – Recognised that the site is
to be restored by 22 February 2042, and with the established vegetation that screens
the site the impact on the landscape is minimised.

Evaluation
82. In assessing the proposal against the context of the Green Belt, an assessment of what the
harm to the Green Belt for this proposal in terms of the harm itself, openness, and whether
the very special circumstances presented outweigh this harm and any other harm.
83. The retention of the existing workshop on site is for ancillary purposes to support the site
and would only be used in connection with the repair and maintenance of machinery from
the site. Officers recognise that the proposal would encroach on the openness of the Green
Belt by virtue of the structure proposed and its existence. However, there is no proposal to
increase its size and it would be temporary in nature of the operation. The location of the
workshop is well screened by trees in a lower contour level to the surrounding area. The
proposal does not propose to increase in height or size of the existing structures, and
therefore would not further impact the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt.
84. With regards to other harm to the Green Belt, Officers are satisfied that noise, dust and
lighting would be controlled by condition. There would be no traffic implications experienced
as there is no proposed increase to operations, and the workshop allows for machinery to be
dealt with on site.
85. With regards to the other purposes of including land in the Green Belt, Officers consider the
proposal would not cause sprawl of large built up areas, would not cause neighbouring
towns to merge into one another, would not impact on the setting or special character of
historic towns, and has no impact on influencing urban regeneration. Consequently, Officers
concur that the proposal does not conflict with these purposes of the Green Belt. With regard
to permanence, Officers consider that as the proposal is for a temporary period the proposal
would not result in a permanent loss of the qualities of the land to which it is designated for
Green Belt. Given the site would be restored to a use compatible with the Green Belt,
Officers consider the proposal would not impact on a loss of permanence in the Green Belt.
86. The proposal for the continued use of the workshop is to align with the permission of the final
restoration of the site until 22 February 2042, or until the permitted extraction, landfilling and
restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with the land restored. The principle of
development for onsite recycling facilities and the restoration of the site is already
established at this Green Belt site under the parent permissions and refs: WA04/1876 and
WA09/0856. This planning application does not include the erection of any new buildings or
structures, or changes to that currently existing on the site under the extant permission ref:
WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39). The applicant has
identified that there is an ancillary need for the workshop to support the ongoing restoration
of the site.
87. Officers note that the applicant has provided factors to amount to very special
circumstances. Officers are satisfied that these factors, when taken together, constitute very
special circumstances that clearly outweigh the harm to the openness to the Green Belt and
any other harm such that an exception to the Green Belt policy can be made. The factors
include: the need to provide suitable ancillary facilities to support the ongoing restoration of
the site ahead of 2042 and the suitability of having these ancillary facilities located on the
existing site within an area that is well screened to assist in protecting the openness to the
Green Belt. Officers consider that the workshop is wholly ancillary and necessary to the
permitted use.

Page 28

Human Rights Implications
88. The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation, found at the end of this report, is
expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with the following
paragraph.
89. In the case of this application it is recognised that the retention of the workshop would have
a slight adverse impact particularly in terms of the AONB and this is also discussed in the
report. Nevertheless, it is the Officers view that the scale of any potential impacts are not
considered sufficient to engage Article 8 or Article 1 and that potential impacts of the
development can be mitigated by planning conditions. As such, this proposal is not
considered to interfere with any Convention right.

Conclusion
90. The purpose of this planning application is to seek an extension of time to retain the
workshop on site until the 22 February 2042, or until the permitted extraction, landfilling and
restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with the land then being restored. The
workshop allows for plant and machinery used at Homefield Sandpit to be retained and
maintained inside it rather than them being transported off site. The use of the workshop is
ancillary to the existing activities at Homefield Sandpit and cannot be reasonably located
elsewhere. The workshop is well screened with the overall Homefield Sandpit and is not
considered to result in adverse impact with regards to noise, dust, lighting or residential
amenity.
91. The application site is within the AONB and AGLV and although the application site is well
screened and is not obvious in the landscape, its retention would have some impact on this
landscape. However, given the application site is set at a lower level and the temporary time
of the workshop would be on site, and the wholly reversible nature and the provision of
restoration. Officers do not consider that the proposal would cause unacceptable or
permanent harm and accordingly Officers consider the impact on the AONB is minor
adverse. Officers are satisfied there is a need for retention of the workshop to provide the
necessary ancillary operations for the site. Officers therefore conclude that the proposal
meets national and Development Plan policy with regards to the AONB.
92. Officers consider that the proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt as it is not
for mineral extraction or primary processing, and also allows for plant and machinery
associated with the waste activities to be repaired within it. As such factors should be
advanced to demonstrate that there are very special circumstances to outweigh the harm
caused by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm. Officers are satisfied that the
workshop is necessary and ancillary to the activities being carried out at Homefield Sandpit;
and are satisfied that its retention on site until 2042 or earlier is also necessary given this is
the date set out for which the site should be restored by. Plant and machinery would be
required until that date to facilitate the restoration of Homefield Sandpit and such plant and
machinery would require maintenance/repair operations. Given this need, the workshop’s
location within the site and its temporary nature, Officers consider the application
demonstrates there are factors that clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by virtue of
its inappropriateness and any other harm including the impact on the AONB identified above.

Recommendation
93. The recommendation is to PERMIT planning permission WA/2021/0004 subject to the
following conditions.

Conditions:
1.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in all respects strictly in
accordance with the following plans/drawings:

Page 29

7

7

-

HF/WKS/1 rev A Site Location Plan Workshop dated 10 November 2020

-

HF/WKS/2 rev A Site Plan Workshop dated 10 November 2020

No variations and/or omissions shall take place without prior written approval of the
County Planning Authority.
2.

This permission shall be for a limited period expiring on 22 February 2042 or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner. At
that time the use of the building as a workshop shall cease and the building shall be
removed from the site, and the land restored in accordance with the approved restoration
scheme for the site.

3.

The workshop hereby permitted shall be used solely in connection with the repair and
maintenance of vehicles, plant and machinery engaged in mineral extraction, landfilling
and restoration activities on site and for no other purpose.

4.

The noise arising from the use of the workshop building hereby permitted when
measured at, or recalculated at a point no less than 3.5m from the facade of any noise
sensitive building shall not exceed 50 LAeq (1/2 hour).

5.

The repair and maintenance of vehicles, plant and machinery shall only be carried out
within the workshop building and between the hours of 0800-1800 Monday to Friday
(excluding public, bank and national holidays) and 0800-1200 hours on Saturdays. This
condition shall not prevent the carrying out, with the written permission of the County
Planning Authority, of urgent repairs to machinery at times other than stated above. No
audible sound shall be emitted at any other times.

Reasons:
1.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

2.

To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policies MC2 and MC17 from the
Surrey Minerals Plan (2011) Core strategy and Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020.

3.

To enable the County Planning Authority to adequately control the development and to
minimise its impact on the amenities of the local area in accordance with Policy MC17 of
the Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document; Policies 13
and 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies; and Saved Policy D1 of the
Waverley Local Plan 2002.

4.

To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policies MC2 and MC17 from the
Surrey Minerals Plan (2011) Core strategy and Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020.

5.

To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policies MC2 and MC17 from the
Surrey Minerals Plan (2011) Core strategy and Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020.

Informatives:
1.

In determining this application the County Planning Authority has worked positively and
proactively with the applicant by: entering into pre-application discussions; assessing the
proposals against relevant Development Plan policies and the National Planning Policy
Framework including its associated planning practice guidance. Further, the County
Planning Authority has: identified all material considerations; considered representations
from interested parties; and determined the application within the timeframe agreed with
the applicant. The applicant has also been given advance sight of the draft planning

Page 30

conditions. This approach has been in accordance with the requirements of paragraph
38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – guidance on the determination of planning
applications
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations
section in the following committee reports.
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when
determining planning applications to National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was updated
in February 2019. This revised NPPF replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and
revised in July 2018. It continues to provide consolidated guidance for local planning authorities
and decision takers in relation to decision-taking (determining planning applications) and in
preparing plans (plan making).
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice GuidanceDwaste; traveller sites;
planning for schools development; sustainable drainage systems; parking and Starter Homes.
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 10).
The NPPF makes clear that the planning system has three overarching objectives in order to
achieve sustainable development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways in order to take opportunities to secure net gains across each of the different
objectives. These objectives are economic, social and environmental.
The presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF does not change the
statutory principle that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with
the adopted development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is
one of those material considerations. In determining planning applications the NPPF (paragraph
11) states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important in determining an application are out of date, permission should be
granted unless the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF as a whole.
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 213 states that in determining planning applications, local planning
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the
greater the weight they may be given).

Human Rights Act 1998
Guidance For Interpretation
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights
into English law. It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act. As such, those
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to
claim a breach of their human rights. Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact
of the development against the benefits to the public at large.
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article
1 of Protocol 1. These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act.

Page 31

7

Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing. Officers must be satisfied that the
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received
have been properly covered in the report.

7
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life. This has been interpreted as the
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference. Officers must judge whether the
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8.
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions
and possibly other rights. Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions.
These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.
Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective. This
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe.
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be
engaged.
Contact Jessica Darvill
Tel. no. 020 8541 8095

Background papers
The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the
proposal, and responses to consultations and representations received, as referred to in the
report and included in the application file.

Other documents
The following were also referred to in the preparation of this report:

Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practice Guidance

The Development Plan
Surrey Waste Local Plan 2019-2033
Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) 2011
District/borough council development plan documents
Waverley Local plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Waverley Local Plan 2002 (Saved Policies)

Page 32

Other Documents
Surrey AONB Management Plan 2020-2025
Noise Policy Statement for England (NPSE) 2010
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment Waverley Borough 2015

Page 33

7

This page is intentionally left blank

7

Application Site Area

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Application Number : WA/2021/0004

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 1 : Homefield Sandpit, Runfold, Farnham

Page 37
7

All boundaries are approximate

7

Application Number : WA/2021/0004

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 2 : Homefield Sandpit, Runfold, Farnham

Page 38

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : WA/2021/0004

Figure 1: Workshop and Side Extension
Viewing from North West dated November 2020.

Page 39
7

All boundaries are approximate

7

Application Number : WA/2021/0004

Figure 2: Workshop and Side Extension
Viewing from Western Side dated November 2020.

Page 40

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : WA/2021/0004

Figure 3: Workshop and Side Extension
dated November 2020.

Page 41
7

All boundaries are approximate

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 8

To:

Planning & Regulatory Committee

By:

Planning Development Manager

District(s)

Waverley Borough Council

Date: 16 June 2021

Electoral Division(s):
Farnham Central
Mr MacLeod

Case Officer:
Jessica Darvill

Purpose:

Grid Ref: 487587 147538

For Decision

Title: Minerals/Waste WA/2021/0005
Summary Report
Land at Homefield Sandpit, Guildford Road, Runfold, Farnham, Surrey GU10 1PG
Continued use of two storey extension to side of workshop to provide welfare facilities
without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref: WA10/2109 dated
17 February 2011 (as amended by planning application ref: WA/2020/1754 dated 14
December 2020) to extend the period of development.
The Homefield Sandpit is situated to the south of Seale Lane and Guildford Road, and west of
Blighton Lane, Runfold and lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) and Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). Homefield Sandpit was an active
mineral working which is due to be restored to agriculture. Mineral extraction has now ceased,
and the site is undergoing restoration. In 1997 new modern conditions were issued for the site
(ref: WA97/1204 and GU97/1106) as part of the Review of Minerals Permissions (ROMP) under
the Environment Act 1995. Under the ROMP, the whole of the site is to be restored by 2042.
This ROMP decision was appealed in 2000 (ref: M25/1/39) with the decision issued on 5
December 2000.
This application has been submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended) (the 1990 Act). Section 73 (s73) gives an express power to apply for
planning permission for the development of land without complying with conditions attached to
an earlier permission. As such, the development, subject to the s73, has been judged to be
acceptable in principle at an earlier date under planning permission refs: WA10/2109 as
amended by WA/2020/1754.
The purpose of this planning application is to seek an extension of time for the continued use of
the extension to the workshop that is currently in place on site until the 22 February 2042, or
until the permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner.
The extension to the workshop is provide welfare facilities for staff who are working on site
operations and restoration of the site.
No objections have been received from technical consultees, however, Farnham Town Council,
Seale and Sand Parish Council and Farnham Biodiversity Partnership have objected broadly on
the grounds of breaches of conditions and for the need to restore the site at the earliest possible
opportunity. Five letters of representation were received, which are also broadly concerned the
progression of the restoration of the site. However, this particular application does not impede
the restoration progress of the site and as stated above, the site has already been given a date
of 2042 for cessation of operations and these facilities are essential to that site. It is also not

Page 43

8

considered that the extension to the workshop has significant adverse impact to the surrounding
AONB or AGLV, given its context within the site, nor that it gives rise to unacceptable impacts
on surrounding amenity, given its location within the site and the screening with adjacent
properties.
The recommendation is to PERMIT subject to conditions.

8

Application details
Applicant
Chambers Runfold

Date application valid
17 December 2020

Period for Determination
18 March 2021, agreed extension of time until 30 June 2021

Amending Documents
None.

Summary of Planning Issues
This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text
should be considered before the meeting.
Issue

Is this aspect of the
proposal in accordance with
the development plan?

Paragraphs in the report
where this has been
discussed

Landscape Character and
Visual Amenity – Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty
and Area of Great
Landscape Value

Yes

41-56

Landscape Character and
Visual Amenity – Landscape
Character

Yes

57-60

Impact on Residential
Amenities

Yes

61-69

Implication on Green Belt

No

70-87

Illustrative material
Site Plan
Plan 1

Aerial Photographs
Aerial 1

Page 44

Site Photographs
Figure 1 - Workshop and Side Extension Viewing from North West dated November 2020
Figure 2 - Workshop and Side Extension Viewing from Western Side dated November 2020
Figure 3 - Workshop and Side Extension dated November 2020

8
Background
Site Description
1. Homefield Sand Pit (the site) is situated to the south of Seale Lane (C20) and Guildford
Road (C119), and west of Blighton Lane, Runfold and extends approximately 12.8 hectares
(ha). The site’s north western boundary adjoins the former Jolly Farmer Quarry with the
site’s south western boundary being formed by vegetation surrounding the residential
property Dene Way. The site’s southern boundary is with residential properties in Furze Hill.
The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt, an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). There are no other environmental
designations close to the site, the nearest one being Farnham Golf Course Site of Nature
Conservation Importance (SNCI), which lies over 900 metres (m) to the south east. There
are residential properties within close proximity of the application site area, along the
Guildford Road and Seale Lane to the north and Furze Hill and Sands Road to the south.
The site is well screened by existing vegetation protecting the visual amenity from nearby
residential properties.
2. Homefield Sandpit is an active mineral working which is due to be restored to agriculture by
February 2042. Sand reserves are now exhausted and extraction has ceased. The site has
planning permission to operate part of the sandpit as an inert waste recycling facility (refs:
WA04/1876 and WA09/0856) until December 2020 which form an integral part of the
applicant’s local waste operation.
3. The application site is an existing two storey extension attached to the eastern side of the
existing workshop which lies within Homefield Sand Pit site in the north west part of the site.
To the north of the workshop lies Homefield Sandpit’s car park for staff and visitors. To the
immediate north east of the application site lies the office and weighbridges. Extending to the
south of the application site lies the recycling facility formed of a mobile plant and press
building. To the south east of the workshop are three storage bays. Beyond the storage bays
and recycling area lies the mineral working pit, which is partly restored. The western
boundary of the workshop is formed by existing vegetation with residential properties
beyond. The nearest residential property is approximately 25 metres (m) from the workshop,
in an elevated position (approximately 5 metres). Tall evergreen trees surround the
workshop along the western and northern boundaries.
4. The application site is a two storey extension to the eastern side of the workshop which was
permitted under planning permission ref: WA06/1894 on 1 November 2006. The two storey
extension to the workshop provides welfare facilities for the site, including a WC, lockers and
a canteen. The existing extension to the workshop measures 11m x 3m and is 5.7m in
height (66 square metres (m²) of floor space). The extension of the workshop is made of
external plastisol and coated galvanised steel sheets in goosewing grey. The current
permission (ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011) allows the extension of the workshop
to be in use up until the 31 December 2020.
5. Infilling of Homefield Sandpit is currently taking place in the main part of the site,
concentrating on the eastern boundary. As part of the planning permission for the restoration
scheme, the Environment Agency imposed a requirement to provide an engineered clay seal

Page 45

around the whole of the main site. The clay barrier has so far been constructed along the
whole length of the boundary with Blighton Lane, around Sandbach and part of Seale Lane.
6. Homefield Sand Pit shares a common floor with the adjoining Jolly Farmer Sandpit to the
west. The Jolly Farmer Sandpit has now largely been restored, apart from the site entrance
infrastructure and land along the eastern boundary immediately adjoining Homefield Sandpit.

8

Planning History
7. Homefield Sandpit has an extensive planning history. The predominant consents for mineral
working (sand extraction) were originally granted in the 1950’s. For the purpose of this report
relevant planning history is as follows.
8. In 1997 new modern conditions were approved under ref: WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 as
part of the Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP) process introduced under the
Environment Act 1995 in order to provide modern planning conditions for working of the site.
Under the ROMP consent the whole site is to be restored by February 2042. The ROMP
decision was appealed in relation to dust mitigation and stockpiling of materials on the area
known as the ‘west extension’ and to do with the requirement that restoration be carried out
in approved scheme (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39).
9. Planning permission ref: GU01/1114 granted an extension for an area known as the Tennis
Court area, which has now been worked and restored to final levels with the exception of the
supporting batter and planted with trees.
10. In 2003 planning permission (ref: GU02/0490 and WA02/0445) was granted for a detailed
drainage scheme and revised restoration and aftercare scheme.
In connection to waste recycling and associated operational activities this involves:
11. In 2005 planning permission (ref: WA04/1876) was granted for the recycling, storage and
export of 30,000 cubic metres (m³) of waste soils per year and also for the recovery of
15,000m³ of concrete, hardcore and tarmacadam for export and processing off-site.
12. In February 2009, planning permission (ref: WA08/1866) was granted for the resiting of
storage bays for the storage of imported limestone scalpings and their retention on site; and
the installation of a wheelwash facility and resiting of existing wheel spinner, until 31
December 2020.
13. On 16 October 2009, planning permission (ref: WA09/0856) was granted for the temporary
use of approximately 1.54ha of land for the screening and washing of inert waste,
comprising: power screen; washing plant; filter press building, associated tanks and
equipment; conveyors and stockpile areas; underground ducting; storage bays and
associated hardstanding areas.
14. On 16 February 2011, planning permission (ref: WA10/2108) was granted for continued
temporary use of land for the overnight parking of up to eight vehicles until 31 December
2020.
15. On 17 February 2011, planning permission (ref:WA10/2109) was granted for continued
temporary use of two storey extension to side of workshop to provide welfare facilities until
31 December 2020.
16. On 7 April 2011, planning permission (ref: WA11/0009) was granted for continued use of
workshop for use in repairing on site plant, machinery and lorries until 31 December 2020.

The proposal
17. The application subject to this report is submitted under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (the 1990 Act). Section 73 (s73) gives an express power to

Page 46

apply for planning permission for the development of land without complying with conditions
attached to an earlier permission. As such, the development, subject to the s73, will have
been judged to be acceptable in principle at an earlier date.
18. In this regard the application seeks consent for the continued use of the two storey extension
to side of workshop to provide welfare facilities without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2
of planning permission ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011 (as amended by planning
application ref: WA/2020/1754 dated 14 December 2020) to extend the time period of the
development so it aligns with the date of 2042, or until the permitted extraction, landfilling
and restoration operations cease, whichever is sooner. No alterations are proposed to the
building.
19. Condition 1 of the consent (ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011) states:
The development herby approved shall be caried out in all respects strictly in accordance
with the following plans/drawings:
-

Drawing Number 1028-22b dated Dec 2005 (submitted with application WA06/1894)
Drawing Number 1028-23a dated Dec 2005 (submitted with application WA06/1894)

No variations and/or omissions shall take place without the prior written approval of the
County Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the permission is implemented in accordance with the terms of the
application and to enable the County Planning Authority to exercise planning control over the
development pursuant to the Surrey Minerals Local Plan 1993 Policy 1, Surrey Waste Plan
2008 Policies CW6, DC2 and DC3 and the Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 Policies C1,
C3 and D1.
20. Condition 2 of the consent (ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011) states:
This permission shall be for a limited period expiring on 31 December 2020 or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner. At that
time the use of the building extension in providing welfare facilities as part of the workshop
shall cease and the building shall be removed from the site, and the land restored in
accordance with the approved restoration scheme.
Reason: To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policy 1 of the Surrey Minerals Local Plan
1993 and Policy CW6 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2008.
21. The applicant is seeking an extension of time for the extension to the workshop to align with
the permission of the final restoration of the site until the 22 February 2042, or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with
the land restored in accordance with the approved restoration scheme on site. The extension
to the workshop provides welfare facilities for staff working on the ongoing support for the
restoration of the site. This application does not seek to modify either the building or the
activities that are carried out in the extension to the workshop but to retain it on site for an
extended period of time. Retention of the extension to the workshop would not generate new
capacity or development at the site or increase vehicle movements associated with activities.
22. Section 73 of the 1990 Act makes clear that in considering a s73 planning application, the
County Planning Authority (CPA) shall consider only the question of the conditions subject to
which planning permission should be granted, and a s73 application must be determined

Page 47

8

according to the current development plan and other material considerations. Therefore, the
key issues to consider are whether the proposed variations to Conditions 1 and 2 of the
planning consent would result in an adverse impact on amenity or the environment.

8

23. Accordingly the applicant has submitted details of the need for the existing extension of the
workshop to be maintained within its location of the Green belt and Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty (AONB), as well as providing a supporting statement with regards to impact
to local amenities and the environment.
24. In seeking variation to Conditions 1 and 2 of the consent, the applicant has proposed that
Condition 1 be reworded to include new plans and drawings of the extension of the
workshop building and that Condition 2 be amended to insert a new date for when the
extension of the workshop should be removed aligning it with the 2042 date or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease, whichever is sooner.

Consultations and publicity
District Council
25. Waverley Borough Council

No objection, subject to appropriate
conditions to ensure that the land is restored
in accordance to approved restoration
scheme and no adverse harm to visual or
residential amenity.

26. Guildford Borough Council

No Comment.

Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory)
27. Landscape

No Objection, provided the facilities are all
ancillary and fundamental to the ongoing
landfill and restoration of the site.

28. South East Water

No Response Received.

29. Thames Water

No Response Received.

30. Surrey Hills AONB Office

No Objection.

Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups
31. Farnham Town Council

Objection, see below for comments.

32. Seale & Sands Parish Council

Objection, see below for comments.

33. Seale, Sands & Runfold Amenity Society

No Response Received.

34. Tongham Parish Council

No Response Received.

35. Farnham Biodiversity Partnership

Objection, see below for comments.

Page 48

Farnham Town Council objection summarised as follows:
 Priority to restore the site as soon as possible and not continue operations, the 2042
date is the latest possible date permitted for restoration.
 Stock piling of materials well above restoration levels. The material is suitable for landfill
so progression of restoration should be priority due to the location of the site in the
Green Belt, AONB and AGLV.
 An assessment of the void and materials to be undertaken to fully understand the extent
of operation needed to restore the site in line with NPPF (2019) paragraph 205(e).
 Small scale recycling activities were only ever expected to provide landfilling and
restoration following completion of sand extraction.
 Request for an updated restoration and site closure plan.
Seale and Sands Parish Council objection summarised as follows:
 Need for a thorough review of current site status, progress over the last 5 years towards
final restoration and strategy for completion of landfilling and restoration to an
appropriate quality before any extension of operations is considered.
 The proposal conflicts with NPPF (2019) Paragraph 205(e), and no consideration in line
with this to conditions have been provided regarding restoration and aftercare.
 Breaches of permissions and conditions in place from the both the EA and the CPA
(including overfilling), with no active enforcement action taken.
 Request for site closure / restoration plan
 Inconsistencies between CPA and the EA in terms of permitting documents with regards
to waste storage on site and capacity from the recycling facility on site.
 Concern with flooding encountered within the Parish with excess water fed into
Homefield, what plans are therefore controlling excess water in the future?
Farnham Biodiversity Partnership objection summarised as follows:
 The proposal conflicts with Section 1 of the NPPF (2019) regarding facilitating the
sustainable use of minerals, and particularly paragraphs 204(h) 205(e).
 Issue raised that the ROMP review of 1997, consent for use of the site was extended to
2042 without public consultation and is not consistent with NPPF paragraph 205(e).
 Concern raised regarding progression towards restoration and site closure plan, raised
the need to identify the earliest possible date for restoration.
 Concern raised over change of use from a mineral extraction and restoration to a
recycling facility.
 Lack of control of activities on site particularly regarding breaches with overfilling.
 Noted that there is overfilling, particularly at the Eastern End and Tennis Court extension
areas. Where trees were previously planted they have been covered by fill material.
 Raised issue that there is a lack of progression towards restoration, particularly given the
locational context of the sit being in the AONB, AGLV and Green Belt.
 Restoration plans need to be updated to support restoration to current standards and to
address current priorities, particularly regarding biodiversity and climate change.
 Request for a community liaison group.
Officer’s comments: Whilst the Officer notes the objections raised by Farnham Town Council,
Seale and Sands Parish Council and Farnham Biodiversity Partnership, the objections raised
are not specific to the provision of the continued temporary use of the workshop on site which is
to provide ancillary facilities to support the ongoing restoration of the site, but rather more
broadly relate to the progression of the restoration and the materials on site. Regarding
breaches and overfilling and restoration of the site, this relates to the WA/97/1204 and
GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39) and the respective conditions. There is
ongoing site monitoring on site and the CPA are working proactively with the applicant regarding

Page 49

8

the restoration of the site and the submission of a periodic review with regards to the ROMP
procedure. This application, however does not concern the breaches or agreed restoration
levels of the site, rather concerns solely the continued siting of the temporary use of the
workshop to provide ancillary facilities towards the restoration of the site.

Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public
8

36. The application was publicised by the posting of 2 site notices and an advert was placed in
the Surrey Advertiser on 29 January 2021. A total of 68 of owner/occupiers of neighbouring
properties were directly notified by letter. The site notices were erected on the 29 January
2021. To date 5 letters of representation have been received by the County Planning
Authority (CPA).
37. The representations received can be summarised as follows:
a) Concern that the proposal goes beyond the original use of the land in extracting
aggregates and is developing into an industrial plant site for reprocessing waste.
b) Concern that the application is delaying the restoration of the site.
c) Concern about the impact this application has on the context of the local surroundings
being an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB); an Area of Great Landscape
Value (AGLV); and the Metropolitan Green Belt.
d) Concern raised that sand extraction from the site has now ceased (some 5 years ago),
and the approval of recycling activities (back in 2005) to support this disposal of inert
waste as landfill as means of restoration, has led to the recycling activities becoming a
dominant activity impacting the local surroundings (AONB; AGLV; and Green Belt) and
maybe a change of use.
e) Issue raised that SCC has given prior approval for the removal of an expiry date as a
Condition for these permissions as a Non-Material Amendment (NMA) without
consultation with neighbouring properties.
f)

In order to retain control of the operations being carried out at Homefield an early date
should be included for expiry for the continued use of the workshop.

g) Paragraph 3.11 of the Planning Support Statement states that the closest residential
property lies 60-70 metres to the north and south of the site. This is incorrect as there
are properties to the east (off Guildford and Sands Road) that are much closer.
h) Noted that there is overfilling, particularly at the Eastern End and Tennis Court extension
areas. Where trees were previously planted they have been covered by fill material.
Restoration of the Western extension has not been complete with little / no screening
bund at the southern boundary fronting properties in Furze Hill.
i)

Issues of ongoing planning breaches regarding overfilling and trees covered by infill.

j)

Issue raised concerning contradiction with the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) Section 1 of ‘Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals’ (in particular
paragraphs 204(h) and 205(e) which require restoration of mineral sites at the earliest
possible opportunity

k) Issue raised that the ROMP review of 1997, consent for use of the site was extended to
2042 without public consultation and is not consistent with NPPF paragraph 205(e).
In regards to points (a), (b), (f), (j) and (k) these concerns relate to the principle of the
development which was permitted under the parent permissions. A Review of Minerals
Permission (ROMP) was undertaken under refs: WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 in 1997, as part

Page 50

of the Review of Minerals Permission (ROMP) process introduced under the Environment Act
1995 in order to provide modern planning conditions for working of the site. Paragraph 1861 of
the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) states that the only restrictions on planning
conditions that may be imposed as part of the review of planning conditions is that all final
applications must include a condition that the winning and working of minerals or depositing of
mineral waste must cease no later than 22 February 2042. This date stems from earlier, not
replaced, Minerals Planning Guidance 5. When ROMP application WA97/1204 and GU97/1106
was submitted to the County Planning Authority, it was within the applicant’s ability to seek an
end date for mineral working and restoration until February 2042 and this is what was given in
Condition 2. Therefore, the end date of the working mineral permission for the site is 22
February 2042, and this proposal for the continued use of the workshop is to provide ancillary
facilities to assist with the restoration of the site.
In regards to point (c) concerning the context of the location of the proposal this is covered in
detail within the relevant sections of this report including Green Belt and Landscape Character
and Visual Amenity.
In regards to point (d) concerning recycling activities, this relates to the 2005 planning
permission (ref: WA04/1876) which was granted for the recycling, storage and export of 30,000
cubic metres (m³) of waste soils per year and also for the recovery of 15,000m³ of concrete,
hardcore and tarmacadam for export and processing off-site, and therefore is not the subject of
this planning application, regarding the continued provision of a workshop to provide ancillary
facilities to assist with the ongoing restoration of the site.
In regards to point (e) concerning the non-material amendment (NMA) applications. As the
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) states, an application to make a non-material
amendment is not a planning permission, thus the existing Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 provisions relating to statutory
consultation and publicity do not apply. Therefore, the Planning Authorities have discretion in
whether and how they chose to inform other parties and seek their views. In terms of the NMAs,
they addressed an amendment to the description of development to remove the end dates only,
and Officers are mindful that the time limits remain intact on the existing planning permission
conditions. Therefore, the planning permissions granted to the site, and the conditions attached
to them, remain intact and publicity was not required.
In regards to point (g) concerning the location of nearby residential properties, this has been
noted, however, the description of these distances relates to the recycling area which is not the
subject area of this report. The impact of the workshop proposal is considered within the
residential amenities section.
In regards to points (h) and (i) regarding breaches and overfilling and restoration of the site, this
relates to the WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39) and the
respective conditions. There is ongoing site monitoring on site and the CPA are working
proactively with the applicant regarding the restoration of the site and the submission of a
periodic review with regards to the ROMP procedure. This application, however does not
concern the breaches or agreed restoration levels of the site, rather concerns solely the
continued siting of the workshop to provide ancillary facilities towards the restoration of the site.

Planning considerations
Introduction
38. The guidance on the determination of planning applications contained in the
Preamble/Agenda frontsheet is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in
conjunction with the following paragraphs.

1

Paragraph: 186 Reference ID: 27-186-20140306

Page 51

8

39. In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists of
the Surrey Waste Plan (2020), Surrey Minerals Plan and Core Strategy (2011), the
Waverley Local Plan Part 1 (2018); Waverley Borough Local Plan 2002 (saved policies); and
Farnham Neighbourhood Plan 2013-2032.

8

40. In considering this application the acceptability of the proposed development will be
assessed against relevant development plan policies and material considerations. In
assessing the application against development plan policy it will be necessary to determine
whether the proposed measures for mitigating any environmental impact of the development
are satisfactory. In this case the main planning considerations are: the impact to the Green
Belt, Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), Area of Great Landscape Value, and
adverse impact on amenity or the environment from the proposal.

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER AND VISUAL AMENITY
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SMP2011)
Policy MC2 – Spatial Strategy – protection of Key Environmental Interests in Surrey
Policy MC14 – Reducing the Adverse Impacts of Mineral Development
Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 14 – Protecting Communities and the Environment
Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy RE3 – Landscape Character
Surrey AONB Management Plan 2020-2025
Policy P1 – Planning Management Policies
Policy P6 - Planning Management Policies
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment (LCA) 2015
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment Waverley Borough 2015

AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY (AONB) and AREA OF GREAT LANDSCAPE
VALUE (AGLV)
Planning Policy
41. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 170 states that planning
policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by: (a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the
development plan); and (b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside,
and the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic
and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and
woodland.
42. Paragraph 172 of the NPPF goes on to state that great weight should be given to conserving
and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, the Broads and Areas of

Page 52

Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to these
issues. The scale and extent of development within these designated areas should be
limited. Planning permission should be refused for major development other than in
exceptional circumstances, and where it can be demonstrated that the development is in the
public interest. Consideration of such applications should include an assessment of: a) the
need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and the impact
of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy; b) the cost of, and scope for,
developing outside the designated area, or meeting the need for it in some other way; and c)
any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and
the extent to which that could be moderated.
43. The test within Paragraph 172 removes the presumption in favour of sustainable
development as set out in paragraph 11 footnote 6 of the NPPF 2019. The test in paragraph
172 is more restrictive if a proposal is in the AONB is defined as ‘major’.
44. There is no definition for whether a proposal is a ‘major development’. The NPPF (2019)
outlines in footnote 55 that the definition a major development is up to discretion of the
decision maker, taking into account its nature, scale and setting and whether it could have a
significant adverse impact on the purposes for which the area has been designated or
defined. Case law also establishes that the NPPF militates against importing the definition of
‘major development’ in the Development Management Procedure Order but to take a
common sense approach. Whilst the Town and Country Planning (General Development
Procedure) (Amendment) (England) Order 2010 SI 2184 is useful in providing some
guidance as to the meaning of ‘major development’ (“the winning and working of minerals or
the use of land for mineral working deposits” and also “development carried out on a site
having an area of 1 hectare or more”). When taking a common sense approach, Officers
consider the development not to constitute as major development for the purposes of the
AONB given the size of the proposed workshop. Officers recognise that the workshop would
cause some harm to the AONB and AGLV in principle however given the limited size and the
need for the workshop to provide a space for the servicing and maintenance of vehicles
associated with the restoration of the landfill site, this harm would be militated by these
factors.
45. Policy MC2 from the SMP2011 states that mineral development that may have direct or
indirect significant adverse impacts on an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty will only be
permitted if (i) it has been demonstrated to be in the public interest; and (ii) the applicant can
establish that development and restoration can be carried out to the highest standard and in
a manner consistent with safeguarding the specific relevant interests. Policy MC14 of the
SMP2011 states that mineral development will be permitted only where a need has been
demonstrated and the applicant has provided information sufficient for the mineral planning
authority to be satisfied that there would be no significant adverse impacts arising from the
development. The policy goes on to state that in determining planning application for mineral
development, potential impacts relating to noise, dust, illumination, and the natural
environment will be considered.
46. Policy 14 from the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 states that planning permission for waste
development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that:
a) It would be consistent with relevant national planning policy with respect to the
following key environmental assets:
i. Protected landscapes of the Surrey Hills AONB
b) It would not result in unacceptable impacts on communities and the environment.
The term ‘unacceptable impact’ should be interpreted in accordance with current
national and local planning policy and planning guidance relevant to the following
matters:

Page 53

8

i. Public amenity and safety (including noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration,
illumination, public open space and the rights of way network).
v. The landscape including impacts on the appearance, quality and character of
the landscape and any features that contribute to its distinctiveness, including
character areas defined at the national and local levels.

8

vi. The natural environment, including biodiversity and geological conservation
interests, including site of local importance (LNR, SNCI, RIGS).
viii. Land and soil resources including impacts on their use, quality and integrity
and including opportunities for remediation, the need to protect any best and
most versatile agricultural land, and the need to address existing and
potential contamination and land stability issues.
ix. Cumulative impacts arising from the interactions between waste
developments, and between waste developments and other forms of
development.
47. Policy RE3 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites states that
new development must respect and where appropriate, enhance the distinctive character of
the landscape in which it is located. Part (i) of Policy RE3 outlines that the protection and
enhancement of the character and qualities of the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) that is of national importance will be a priority and will include the application
of national planning policies together with the Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan. The
setting of the AONB will be protected where development outside its boundaries harm public
views from or into the AONB. Part (ii) of Policy RE3 outlines that the same principles for
protecting the AONB will apply within an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV), which will
be retained for its own sake and as a buffer to the AONB, until there is a review of the Surrey
Hills AONB boundary, whilst recognising that the protection of the AGLV is commensurate
with its status as a local landscape designation. In this respect the setting of the AGLV will
be protected.
48. The Surrey Hills AONB Board have produced the Surrey Hills AONB Management Plan
2020 - 2025. Whilst this document does not form part of the Development Plan it is a
material consideration in the decision-making process for planning application proposals
within the AONB. The Management Plan outlines that the primary purpose of AONB
designation is ‘to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the area’ in line with Section
82 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CRoW Act). The Management Plan also
includes Planning Management Polices. Policy P1 (Planning Management Polices) states
that in considering planning applications great weight will be attached to any adverse impact
that the development proposal would have on the amenity, landscape and scenic beauty of
the AONB and the need for its enhancement. Policy P6 states that development that would
spoil the setting of the AONB by harming public views into or from the AONB will be resisted.
Details Submitted
49. The applicant has submitted details of the location site within the AONB and AGLV
landscape within the Overarching Planning Support Statement v1 dated December 2020.
50. The applicant has identified that there is a need for the provision of welfare facilities for staff
using the site to support the ongoing restoration of the site by 22 February 2042 and ensure
that the landscape character is reinstated following the provision of the mineral permission.
The extension to the workshop itself is temporary and would be removed by 22 February
2042 or when the permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease,
whichever is sooner. This combined with the well screened location that the extension of the
workshop is sited in, assist minimises potential detrimental impacts to the environment,
landscape and recreational opportunities.

Page 54

Evaluation
51. Due to the site’s location, an assessment as to whether it is appropriate development within
the AONB and AGLV, and does not cause significant adverse impacts to the character of the
AONB and AGLV, as set out in paragraph 172 of the NPPF, is required.
52. As set out in Paragraph 172 of the NPPF the proposal needs to be considered in terms of
the following:


The need for the development – The extension to workshop building provides welfare
facilities, including WC, lockers and canteen, for staff using the site. The provision of
these welfare facilities are associated with the day to day operations of Homefield
Sandpit, including the restoration of the site. The need for the continued use of the
extension of workshop is to provide suitable welfare facilities for staff in line with
conditions for working legislation2. Officers recognised that the applicant has
requested an end date of 2042 for retention of the extension of the workshop and this
is to align with the restoration date for Homefield Sandpit as stipulated in
WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39).



The scope for developing outside the designated area – The extension to the
workshop building provides welfare facilities for staff using the site. Officers, consider
it to be impractical to have these welfare facilities located outside of Homefield
Sandpit and the AONB, and it would not meet current working condition legislations.



Detrimental effect on the environment, landscape, and recreational opportunities –
The permission sought is for a temporary period of time for which will support the
ongoing restoration activities to be maintained ahead of the extant mineral
permission on site until 22 February 2042, after which the extension to the workshop
building would be removed and the land reinstated. Due to the temporary nature of
the development the extension to the workshop would not have an irreversible
adverse impact to the environment, landscape or recreational opportunities. In
addition, the location of the extension to the workshop is well screened and at a
lower contour level to the surrounding area which also assists with minimising the
impact on the environment and the landscape.

53. Policy MC2 of the Surrey Mineral Plan (2011) outlines the test criteria for mineral
development within the AONB. Officers have considered the proposal in terms of this criteria
as outlined below:


Demonstrated to be in the public interest – The proposal is seeking to support the
ongoing restoration of the mineral site, of which is in the public’s interest in terms of
restoring the site.



Establish that the development and restoration can be carried out to the highest
standard and in a manner consistent with safeguarding the specific relevant interests
- By having the extension of the workshop on site it provides suitable and adequate
welfare facilities for staff working on the site, enabling staff to work on the restoration
of the site.

54. The Surrey Hills AONB Office were consulted on the application and stated in their
consultation response that given that the site is progressively restored, the temporary
landscape impact will diminish in time. In addition, it is recognised that the building is well
screened within the Surrey Hills AONB and are located at a low level that cannot be readily
seen in the locality. Therefore, in this respect the Surrey Hill AONB Office raise no objection.

2

Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992, Regulation 20 – Sanitary Convenience

Page 55

8

8

55. In terms of meeting the requirements of Policy RE3 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part
1 Strategic Policies and Sites, the proposed continuation of using the existing extension to
the workshop seeks to minimise disruption to the landscape by being well screened and
being situated at a lower contour level to the surrounding areas. The development will be
temporary in nature and provides welfare facilities for staff working on the restoration of the
site. In this respect Officers consider that the proposal still seeks to respect the local
landscape and contributes to the restoration of the site which will seek to maintain the local
landscape designation.
56. Officers are satisfied that there is a need for the retention of the existing extension to the
workshop building to assist in providing welfare facilities for staff working at Homefield
Sandpit and in connection with the day to day operations and ongoing restoration of the site.
The extension to the workshop is well screened so would not be obvious or incongruous in
the landscape. Officers accept that the development would have some detrimental effect on
the landscape and would not enhance the natural beauty of the AONB during its retention.
Nevertheless, given its temporary nature and the limited degree of impact, Officers do not
consider that the proposed continued use of the extension to the workshop would have a
significant impact on the conservation of the natural beauty of the landscape. In this respect,
Officers consider that the applicant has suitably demonstrated the need for the development
and there is no suitable alternative solution that exists to provide the required services the
extension of the workshop offers.

LANDSCAPE CHARACTER
Planning Policy
57. The Surrey Landscape Character Assessment (LCA) Waverley Borough 2015 is a
comprehensive assessment of the landscape character of the county. The application site
lies within the Shackleford Open Greensand Hills LCA which is an irregular section of land
west of Guildford. The key characteristics of this landscape include; a diverse landscape
which is predominately pastoral but with areas of arable farmland, woodland, heathland, golf
courses, parkland, nurseries and paddocks and quarry workings. Field pattern of mainly
medium to large regular fields with straight boundaries typical of parliamentary enclosure
bounded by hedgerows with hedgerow trees or by fences. This landscape character is of a
rural, peaceful landscape type.

Evaluation
58. The County Landscape Architect was consulted on the proposal. The County Landscape
Architect notes the extension to the workshop subject to this application is sited to the north
western part of the quarry site, in close proximity to the site entrance. This part of the quarry
is recognised to be relatively well-screened by established perimeter vegetation and is not
prominent in public views from the surrounding areas. The County Landscape Architect
recommends that the perimeter vegetation is maintained (an enhanced where appropriate)
to maintain the current screening of the site.
59. The County Landscape Architect (CLA) also acknowledges that whilst the quarry site
remains largely unrestored in its character, including the facilities that this application refers
to, it detracts from and is at odds with the prevailing landscape character of the surrounding
area, including the AONB. The CLA goes on to comment that this is counterbalanced from a
visual amenity perspective by the site’s relatively well screened situation. The CLA states
that provided these facilities are ancillary and fundamental to the approved mineral
development and ongoing landfilling and restoration of the site, he does not object to the

Page 56

proposal from a landscape perspective. These comments are made in relation to both
landscape character and the AONB.
60. Officers recognise the need to provide suitable ancillary facilities to support workers working
on the ongoing restoration works of the site, and do not consider there to be a suitable
alternative solution in providing these ancillary facilities that the extension to the workshop
provides. In terms of the impact on the landscape character as outlined in the LCA 2015,
Officers consider the temporary nature of the extension to the workshop to be located on site
combined with the provision of good vegetation screening of the extension of the workshop
from the surrounding areas that the impact on the landscape character is minimised and
would not cause detrimental impacts.

IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITIES
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SMP2011)
Policy MC14 – Reducing the Adverse Impacts of Mineral Development
Policy MC17 – Restoring Mineral Workings
Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 13 – Sustainable Design
Policy 14 – Protecting Communities and the Environment
Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy D1 – Environmental Implications of Development (Saved 2002 policy)

Planning Policy
61. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 170 states that planning
policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment
by:
a) Protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in
the development plan).
b) Recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and
other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and
woodland.
e) Preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil,
air, water or noise pollution or land instability.
62. Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2019) states that the development should be appropriate for its
location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on
health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of
the site of the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they
should:

Page 57

8

a) Mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impact resulting from noise from
new development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on
health and the quality of life3.
b) Identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by
noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason.
c) Limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark
landscapes and nature conservation.

8

63. Paragraph 205 part (e) of the NPPF (2019) states that when considering proposals for
mineral extraction, mineral planning authorities should provide for restoration and aftercare
at the earliest opportunity.
64. Policy MC14 of the SMP2011 states that mineral development will be permitted only where a
need has been demonstrated and the applicant has provided information sufficient for the
mineral planning authority to be satisfied that there would be no significant adverse impacts
arising from the development. The policy goes on to state that in determining planning
application for mineral development, potential impacts relating to noise, dust, illumination
and the natural environment will be considered. Policy MC17 of the Surrey Minerals Plan
2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) states that restoration of mineral
workings should be completed at the earliest opportunity and progressive restoration will be
required where appropriate.
65. Policy 13 of the Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies states that all proposals for waste
development should demonstrate that the (i) development is of a scale, form and character
appropriate to its location. Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies outline
that the development should be consistent with relevant national planning policies in respect
to the landscape characteristics and should not result in unacceptable impacts on
communities and the environment including impacts on public amenity and safety.
66. Saved Policy D1 from the Waverley Borough Council Local plan (2002) states that the
council will have regards to the environmental implications of development and will promote
and encourage enhancement of the environment. Development will not be permitted where it
would result in material detriment to the environment by virtue of:
a) Loss of damage to important environmental assets (including areas of conservation,
ecological or landscape value).
b) Harm to visual character and distinctiveness of locality, particularly in respect of the
design and scale of the development and its relationship to its surroundings.
c) Loss of general amenity, including material loss or natural light and privacy enjoyed
by neighbours and disturbance resulting from the emission of noise, light or vibration.
d) Levels of traffic which are incompatible with the local highway network or cause
significant environmental harm by virtue of noise and disturbance.
e) Potential pollution of air, land, water, including that arising from light pollution and
from the storage and use of hazardous substances.

Details Submitted

3

See Explanatory Note to the Noise Policy Statement for England (Department for Environment, Food &
Rural Affairs, 2010).

Page 58

67. The existing extension to the workshop on site measures 11m x 3m (66 square metres (m²)
of floor space) and 5.7m in height. The extension to the workshop is made of external
plastisol and coated galvanised steel sheets in goosewing grey. The proposal does not
include any amendments to the existing extension of the workshop in terms of both structure
and operational use. The nearest residential property is approximately 25 metres (m) from
the workshop and its extension, in an elevated position (approximately 5 metres) and the
boundary side of the workshop is well screened by vegetation to assist in screening the
visual impact from nearby residential properties.
Evaluation
68. The extension to the workshop provides welfare facilities required under current legislation4
for working conditions for staff working at Homefield Sandpit. The siting of the extension to
the workshop is in a lower contour level from nearby residential properties and the
vegetation that surrounds the workshop to the western boundary provides screening that will
assist with mitigating visual and noise impacts from the extension to the workshop. No
further operational works are proposed as part of this application, only works to continue to
restore the site. Officers propose that should planning permission be granted, Conditions 3
and 4 of planning permission ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 February 2011 be brought forward to
ensure protection to the environment with regards to hours of operation and its use. These
conditions outline the following:


Condition 3: The workshop extension hereby permitted shall be used solely in
connection with providing welfare facilities comprising WC, lockers, and canteen for
staff employed in mineral extraction, landfilling, recycling and restoration activities on
the site and for no other purpose.



Condition 4: The workshop extension hereby permitted comprising the welfare
facilities shall only be used between the hours of 0730-1800 hours Mondays to
Fridays (excluding public holidays) and 0800-1300 hours on Saturdays.

69. In this respect, Officers are satisfied that the retention of the existing extension to the
workshop on site to provide welfare facilities for staff working at Homefield Sandpit and
assisting with the ongoing restoration of the site would not give rise to significant adverse
impacts to the local environment and local amenity. Officers propose to impose conditions
with regards to use and hours of use. In this respect Officers consider that the development
accords with the requirements of the Development Plans including saved Policy DC1 from
the Waverley Local Plan (2002); Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan (2020) Part 1 Policies
and the NPPF (2019).

GREEN BELT
Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) (SPD2011)
Policy MC3 – Spatial Strategy – Mineral Development in Green Belt
Policy MC17 – Restoring Mineral Workings
Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies
Policy 9 – Green Belt
Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Policy RE2 – Green Belt
4

Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992, Regulation 20 – Sanitary Conditions

Page 59

8

Planning Policy

8

70. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) paragraph 133 states that great
importance is attached to areas of Green Belt, where the fundamental aim of the Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. Paragraph 134 goes on
to outline the 5 purposes that the Green Belt serves including:


To check the unrestricted sprawl of large built up areas;



To prevent the neighbouring towns merging into one another;



To assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;



To preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and



To assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban
land.

71. Paragraph 143 of NPPF (2019) outlines that inappropriate development is by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances.
Paragraph 144 goes on to state that when considering any planning application, local
planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt. ‘Very Special Circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt
by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal is clearly
outweighed by other circumstances.
72. NPPF (2019) paragraph 146 states that certain other forms of development are also not
inappropriate in the Green Belt provided that they preserve its openness and do not conflict
with the purposes of including land within it. Whilst this includes (a) mineral extraction, this
proposal is not for mineral extraction but for the retention of a building. As such Officers do
not consider that this proposal would fall within one of the exemptions set out in paragraph
146 of the NPPF.
73. Paragraph 205 states that when determining planning applications, great weight should be
given to the benefits of mineral extraction, including the economy. In considering proposals
for mineral extraction, minerals planning authorities should (e) provide for restoration and
aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to high environmental standards,
through the application of appropriate conditions.
74. Paragraph 6 of the National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) states that Green Belts have
special protection in respect to development, and suitable sites and areas outside of the
Green Belt should be sought first. Paragraph 7 goes on to state that landfill sites are
restored to beneficial uses at the earliest opportunity and to high environmental standards
through the application of appropriate conditions where necessary.
75. Planning Policy MC3 from the SMP2011 outlines that mineral extraction in the Green Belt
will only be permitted where the highest environmental standards of operation are
maintained and the land restored to beneficial after-uses consistent with Green Belt
objectives within agreed time limits. Proposals in the Green Belt for mineral development
other than extraction and primary treatment, will only be permitted where the applicant has
demonstrated that very special circumstances exist to outweigh the harm by reasons of its
inappropriateness and any other harm.
76. Planning Policy MC17 from the SMP2011 states that a site should be restored and managed
to a high standard. Restoration of mineral workings should be completed at the earliest
opportunity and progressive restoration will be required where appropriate. The applicant will

Page 60

be expected to agree a scheme with the mineral planning authority detailing how the land
will be restored and managed before, during and after working.
77. Planning Policy 9 from the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies, states that planning
permission will not be granted for inappropriate waste management development in the
Green Belt unless it is shown that very special circumstances exist ‘Very Special
Circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm caused to the Green Belt by reason
of inappropriateness and any other harm resulting from the proposal is clearly outweighed by
other considerations associated with the proposal, either on their own or in combination.
78. Policy RE2 from the Waverley Local Plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites, states
that certain forms of development are considered to be appropriate in the Green Belt
Proposals will be permitted where they do not conflict with the exceptions listed in the
national planning policy.
Details Submitted
79. The applicant has submitted details of a Green Belt Statement within the Overarching
Planning Support Statement v1 dated December 2020. The application site for the
continuation of use for the existing extension of the workshop to provide welfare facilities for
workers on site has previously been deemed acceptable under planning permission
WA10/2109.
80. The applicant has identified that mineral extraction is not considered inappropriate in the
Green Belt provided the development preserves its openness and does not conflict with the
purposes of including land within it. However, as outlined above, this proposal is not for
extraction of minerals or primary processing, therefore, in accordance with Policy MC3, the
proposal should only be permitted where very special circumstances have been
demonstrated which outweighs the harm by virtue of its inappropriateness, openness and
any other harm. The proposal to retain the existing extension to the workshop does not seek
to generate new capacity of operations on site but seeks to sustain existing capacity to
support the restoration of the site connected to the life of the Homefield minerals permission
and outstanding restoration conditions.
81. The applicant outlines that very special circumstances associated with this application
include;


The need to restore the site – the continued use of the existing extension to the
workshop is identified as an ancillary component in supporting the ongoing landfilling
and restoration of the site by provision of welfare facilities. The restoration of which is
linked to the existing mineral consent of WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 dated 1997 (as
amended by appeal decision M25/1/39), with restoration of the site to be completed
by 22 February 2042 or when the permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration
operations cease whichever is sooner. Without the siting of the extension to the
workshop at Homefield there is no provision of other welfare facilities on site to meet
current working condition legislation for workers, working on the restoration of the
site.



Location of the workshop in relation to the restoration of the site – it would be
inappropriate to locate the welfare facilities (extension of the workshop) outside of
Homefield Sandpit, there are no other suitable sites that are non-Green Belt identified
to locate the welfare facilities that the extension to the workshop provides.



Impact on openness and visual amenities is temporary – Recognised that the site is
to be restored by 22 February 2042, and with the established vegetation that screens
the site the impact on the landscape is minimised.

Evaluation

Page 61

8

82. In assessing the proposal against the context of the Green Belt, an assessment of what the
harm to the Green Belt for this proposal in terms of the harm itself, openness, and whether
the very special circumstances presented outweigh this harm and any other harm.

8

83. The retention of the existing extension to the workshop on site is to provide welfare facilities
for workers who are working on site, and would only be used in connection with day to day
activities and ongoing restoration of the site. Officers recognise that the proposal would
encroach on the openness of the Green Belt by virtue of the structure proposed and its
existence. However, there is no proposal to increase its size and it would be temporary in
nature of the operation. The location of the extension to the workshop is well screened by
trees in a lower contour level to the surrounding area. The proposal does not propose to
increase in height or size of the existing structures, and therefore would not further impact
the visual amenity and character of the Green Belt.
84. With regards to other harm to the Green Belt, Officers are satisfied that noise and lighting
would be controlled by condition concerning the hours of use. There would be no traffic
implications experienced as there is no proposed increase to operations.
85. With regards to the other purposes of including land in the Green Belt, Officers consider the
proposal would not cause sprawl of large built up areas, would not cause neighbouring
towns to merge into one another, would not impact on the setting or special character of
historic towns, and has no impact on influencing urban regeneration. Consequently, Officers
concur that the proposal does not conflict with these purposes of the Green Belt. With regard
to permanence, Officers consider that as the proposal is for a temporary period the proposal
would not result in a permanent loss of the qualities of the land to which it is designated for
Green Belt. Given the site would be restored to a use compatible with the Green Belt,
Officers consider the proposal would not impact on a loss of permanence in the Green Belt.
86. The proposal for the continued use of the extension to the workshop is to align with the
permission of the final restoration of the site until 22 February 2042, or until the permitted
extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with the land
restored. The principle of development for onsite recycling facilities and the restoration of the
site is already established at this Green Belt site under the parent permissions and refs:
WA04/1876 and WA09/0856. This planning application does not include the erection of any
new buildings or structures, or changes to that currently existing on the site under the extant
permission ref: WA/97/1204 and GU97/1106 (as amended by appeal decision M25/1/39).
The applicant has identified that there is an ancillary need for the extension of the workshop
to provide welfare facilities to support the ongoing restoration of the site.
87. Officers note that the applicant has provided factors to amount to very special
circumstances. Officers are satisfied that these factors, when taken together, constitute very
special circumstances that clearly outweigh the harm to the openness to the Green Belt and
any other harm such that an exception to the Green Belt policy can be made. The factors
include: the need to provide suitable welfare facilities for workers on site to support the
ongoing restoration of the site ahead of 2042 and the suitability of having these welfare
facilities located on the existing site within an area that is well screened to assist in
protecting the openness to the Green Belt. Officers consider that the continued use of the
extension to the workshop is wholly ancillary and necessary to the permitted use.

Human Rights Implications
88. The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation, contained in the Preamble to the Agenda
is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with the following
paragraph.
89. In the case of this application it is recognised that the retention of the workshop extension
would have a slight adverse impact particularly in terms of the AONB and this is also

Page 62

discussed in the report. Nevertheless, it is the Officers view that the scale of any potential
impacts are not considered sufficient to engage Article 8 or Article 1 and that potential
impacts of the development can be mitigated by planning conditions. As such, this proposal
is not considered to interfere with any Convention right.

Conclusion
90. The purpose of this planning application is to seek an extension of time to retain the
workshop extension on site until the 22 February 2042, or until the permitted extraction,
landfilling and restoration operations cease whichever is sooner, with the land restored. The
existing extension to the workshop provides the necessary welfare facilities that are required
under current working conditions legislations for staff working on site. The use of the
extension to the workshop is ancillary to the existing activities at Homefield Sandpit and
cannot be reasonably located elsewhere. The extension to the workshop is well screened
with the overall Homefield Sandpit and is not considered to result in adverse impact with
regards to noise, lighting or residential amenity.
91. The application site is within the AONB and AGLV and although the application site is well
screened and is not obvious in the landscape, its retention would have some impact on this
landscape. However, given the application site is set at a lower level and the temporary time
of the extension to the workshop would be on site, and the wholly reversible nature and the
provision of restoration. Officers do not consider that the proposal would cause unacceptable
or permanent harm and accordingly Officers consider the impact on the AONB is minor
adverse. Officers are satisfied there is a need for retention of the workshop extension to
provide the necessary welfare facilities for workers on site. Officers therefore conclude that
the proposal meets national and Development Plan policy with regards to the AONB.
92. Officers consider that the proposal is inappropriate development in the Green Belt as it is not
for mineral extraction or primary processing. As such factors should be advanced to
demonstrate that there are very special circumstances to outweigh the harm caused by
reason of inappropriateness and any other harm. Officers are satisfied that the extension to
the workshop is necessary in terms of welfare provision and ancillary to the activities being
carried out at Homefield Sandpit; and are satisfied that its retention on site until 2042, or
earlier, is also necessary given this is the date set out for which the site should be restored
by. Staff will be required on site until that date to facilitate the restoration of Homefield
Sandpit and such will need the provision of welfare facilities. Given this need, the location of
the extension to the workshop’s within the site and its temporary nature, Officers consider
the application demonstrates there are factors that clearly outweigh the harm to the Green
Belt by virtue of its inappropriateness and any other harm including the impact on the AONB
identified above.

Recommendation
93. The recommendation is to PERMIT planning permission WA/2021/0005 subject to the
following conditions.

Conditions:
1.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in all respects strictly in
accordance with the following plans/drawings:

-

HF/WKS/Ext/1 rev A Site Location Plan Workshop Extension dated 13 November 2020

-

HF/WKS/Ext/2 rev A Site Plan Workshop Extension dated 12 November 2020
No variations and/or omissions shall take place without prior written approval of the
County Planning Authority.

Page 63

8

2.

This permission shall be for a limited period expiring on 22 February 2042, or until the
permitted extraction, landfilling and restoration operations cease, whichever is the
sooner. At that time the use of the building extension in providing welfare facilities as part
of the workshop shall cease and the building shall be removed from the site, and the land
restored in accordance with the approved restoration scheme.

3.

The workshop extension hereby permitted shall be used solely in connection with
providing welfare facilities comprising WC, lockers and canteen for staff employed in
mineral extraction, landfilling, recycling and restoration activities on the site and for no
other purpose.

4.

The workshop extension hereby permitted comprising the welfare facilities shall only be
used between the hours of 0730-1800 hours Mondays to Fridays (excluding public, bank
and national holidays) and 0800-1300 hours on Saturdays.

8

Reasons:
1.

For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

2.

To enable the County Planning Authority to exercise control over the site for the
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policies MC2 and MC17 from the
Surrey Minerals Plan (2011) Core strategy and Policy 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020.

3.

To enable the County Planning Authority to adequately control the development and to
minimise its impact on the amenities of the local area in accordance with Policy MC17 of
the Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document; Policies 13
and 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies; and Saved Policy D1 of the
Waverley Local Plan 2002.

4.

To enable the County Planning Authority to adequately control the development and to
minimise its impact on the amenities of the local area in accordance with Policy MC17 of
the Surrey Mineral Plan 2011 Core Strategy Development Plan Document; Policies 13
and 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2020 Part 1 Policies; and Saved Policy D1 of the
Waverley Local Plan 2002.

Informatives:
1.

In determining this application the County Planning Authority has worked positively and
proactively with the applicant by: entering into pre-application discussions; assessing the
proposals against relevant Development Plan policies and the National Planning Policy
Framework including its associated planning practice guidance. Further, the County
Planning Authority has: identified all material considerations; considered representations
from interested parties; and determined the application within the timeframe agreed with
the applicant. The applicant has also been given advance sight of the draft planning
conditions. This approach has been in accordance with the requirements of paragraph
38 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – guidance on the determination of planning
applications
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations
section in the following committee reports.
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when
determining planning applications to National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was updated
in February 2019. This revised NPPF replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and
revised in July 2018. It continues to provide consolidated guidance for local planning authorities

Page 64

and decision takers in relation to decision-taking (determining planning applications) and in
preparing plans (plan making).
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice GuidanceDwaste; traveller sites;
planning for schools development; sustainable drainage systems; parking and Starter Homes.
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 10).
The NPPF makes clear that the planning system has three overarching objectives in order to
achieve sustainable development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways in order to take opportunities to secure net gains across each of the different
objectives. These objectives are economic, social and environmental.
The presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF does not change the
statutory principle that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with
the adopted development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is
one of those material considerations. In determining planning applications the NPPF (paragraph
11) states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be
approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important in determining an application are out of date, permission should be
granted unless the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in the NPPF as a whole.
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 213 states that in determining planning applications, local planning
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the
greater the weight they may be given).

Human Rights Act 1998
Guidance For Interpretation
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights
into English law. It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act. As such, those
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to
claim a breach of their human rights. Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact
of the development against the benefits to the public at large.
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article
1 of Protocol 1. These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act.
Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing. Officers must be satisfied that the
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received
have been properly covered in the report.
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life. This has been interpreted as the
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference. Officers must judge whether the
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8.
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions
and possibly other rights. Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions.

Page 65

8

These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the
protection of the rights and freedoms of others.

8

Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective. This
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe.
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be
engaged.

Contact Jessica Darvill
Tel. no. 020 8541 8095

Background papers
The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the
proposal, and responses to consultations and representations received, as referred to in the
report and included in the application file.

Other documents
The following were also referred to in the preparation of this report:

Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practice Guidance

The Development Plan
Surrey Waste Local Plan 2019-2033
Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) 2011

District/borough council development plan documents
Waverley Local plan 2018 Part 1 Strategic Policies and Sites
Waverley Local Plan 2002 (Saved Policies)

Other Documents
Surrey AONB Management Plan 2020-2025
Noise Policy Statement for England (NPSE) 2010
Surrey Landscape Character Assessment Waverley Borough 2015

Page 66

8

Application Site Area

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Application Number : WA/2021/0005

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 1 : Homefield Sandpit, Runfold, Farnham

Page 69
8

All boundaries are approximate

8

Application Number : WA/2021/0005

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 2 : Homefield Sandpit, Runfold, Farnham

Page 70

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : WA/2021/0005

Figure 1 : Workshop and Side Extension
Viewing from North West dated November 2020

Page 71
8

8

Application Number : WA/2021/0005

Figure 2 : Workshop and Side Extension
Viewing from Western Side dated November 2020

Page 72

Application Number : WA/2021/0005

Figure 3 : Workshop and Side Extension
dated November 2020

Page 73
8

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 9

To:

Planning & Regulatory Committee

By:

Planning Development Manager

District(s)

Mole Valley District Council

Date: 16 June 2021

Electoral Division(s):
Dorking Rural
Mrs Clack

Case Officer:
Dustin Lees

Purpose:

Grid Ref: 521980 141454

For Decision

Title: Waste Management Application Ref. MO/2020/1804
Summary Report
Land at Rolls Farmhouse, Partridge Lane, Newdigate, Surrey RH5 5BW
Change of use of land, existing storage bays and existing building for the storage and
sorting of green waste. Erection of roof on storage barn and retaining bund.
The proposed development is for the material change of use of agricultural land to waste green
waste management. It includes the importation, deposit, storage, and processing of some 1,350
tonnes waste generated by arboricultural contractors per annum, and the export of resulting
materials for use as biomass fuel, logs and firewood for use in energy production. It would also
result in the export of material to a mill to be planked when required.
The development would involve the use a range of range of plant and machinery including a
woodchipper, log splitter, chainsaw, telehandler, and digger to process waste material on the
application site. In doing so it would generate some 30 LGV movements per day over and
above the 8 daily car movements associated with employees and two HGV movements per
week to collect and remove processed waste.
The proposal also includes the completion and extension (by a 130m²) of an existing building to
be used as a machinery store, and the retention of an existing bund along some of the
boundaries of the application site, and three existing storage bay-type structures to be used for
storage of arboricultural waste. The development would be operational from 07:00 to 19:00
hours Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays, with no working proposed on
Sundays, Bank, National or Public Holidays.
The application site, which is in the Metropolitan Green Belt, is largely surrounded by rural
countryside and agricultural land save for residential properties which front both sides of
Partridge Lane. Rolls Farm House is located some 45 metres (m) to the north of the application
site’s boundary whilst Mallard’s Farm House is about 55m to the south beyond several
agricultural buildings adjacent to the southern boundary of the application site. Rolls Farm
House is a Grade II Listed Building. A further dwelling is located about 30m to the east of the
application site boundary on the opposite side of Partridge Lane.
Public Footpath No. 309 runs from north west to south east diagonally across the field
immediately north of the application site ending at Partridge Lane just to the north of the site’s
vehicular access point.

Page 75

9

A total of 25 public representations have been received by the County Planning Authority (CPA)
in respect of the proposed development. Of these, 21 support the grant of planning permission,
and 4 raise concerns about or otherwise oppose the grant of consent.
Mole Valley District Council has objected to the grant of planning permission for the proposed
development as they consider that it is inappropriate in the Green Belt and there are no very
special circumstances which clearly outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and the harm caused to the character and appearance of the area.
Newdigate Parish Council has objected to the grant of consent for similar reasons.

9

The development proposed would make a modest contribution to achieving relevant targets for
recycling, recovery, and the diversion of waste from disposal and so it complies with Policy 1 of
the Surrey Waste Plan 2019 (SWP). However, the application site is not allocated or otherwise
identified in the SWP (or any other development plan document), it is not an existing lawful
waste management site, and it does not benefit from previously developed land status.
Consequently, it does not accord with the locational criteria for waste management development
as set out in Policies 2 and 10 of the SWP.
Subject to the imposition of a range of planning conditions limiting vehicle movements generated
by the development; hours of operation; and formalising vehicle turning and parking,
manoeuvring, and loading arrangements officers do not consider that the proposed development
would have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or result in severe residual cumulative
impacts on the road network. The County Highway Authority has not objected to or otherwise
raised any concerns about the proposed development. Accordingly, subject to planning
conditions, the proposed development satisfies the requirements of Policy 15 of the SWP,
Policies MOV2 and RUD19 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP), and Policy CS18 of the
Mole Valley Core Strategy (MVCS).
Having assessed the proposed development in line with paragraphs 190 and 193 of the National
Planning Policy Framework 2019, SCC’s Historic Building’s Officer is satisfied that the proposed
development will not have a material impact on the special interest of the Grade II Listed Rolls
Farm House. On this basis, and subject to conditions, officers are satisfied that the proposed
development will not have a material impact on the special interest or setting of the listed
building in accordance with Policy 14 of the SWP.
Similarly, subject to the imposition of planning conditions and/or informatives on any consent
issued to secure the measures proposed by SCC’s Senior Countryside Access Officer the
development proposed will not have an unacceptable impact on Public Footpath No. 309 or its
users, and so satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP.
The Lead Local Flood Authority does not consider that the proposed development, in the context
of the application site, would result in a material change to the existing surface water drainage
strategy or increase in surface water runoff, and therefore the proposed development satisfies
Policy 14 of the SWP in respect of flood risk and surface water management.
In respect of air quality, the proposed development has been assessed in the context of
bioaerosol, dust, and vehicle emissions. Having regard to the nature and scale of the
development, and subject to the imposition of a range of conditions on any consent granted,
officers do not consider that the proposal would give rise to adverse air quality which may in turn
have an unacceptable impact on local amenity or the environment. For these reasons the
development satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP and Policy ENV22 of the MVLP.
Similarly, subject to the imposition of planning conditions on any consent granted to secure,
amongst other matters , the operational hours specified in the applicant’s noise assessment
officers are satisfied that the development would not give rise to unacceptable levels of noise
emissions and therefore satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP and Policy ENV22 of the MVLP.

Page 2 of 32

Page 76

The proposed development is unlikely to result in significant harm to bats, great crested newts,
and reptiles; and some ecological enhancement would be provided as part of the development.
For these reasons officers consider that, subject to conditions, the proposed development
satisfies Policies 13 and 14 of the SWP, and Policy CS15 of the MVCS.
However, having regard to the nature and scale of the development proposed, particularly the
number and frequency of vehicle movements to be generated by the development and the open
storage and processing of waste, officers consider that the development will have an industrial
feel which would give rise to adverse visual impacts and contrast with the local landscape
character. The proposed development would not conserve or enhance the appearance, quality,
and character of the local landscape. The application site and proposed development provide
limited opportunities for landscape enhancement and so planning conditions would not
overcome the relevant harm. For these reasons the proposed development is contrary to
Policies 13 and 14 of the SWP, Policies ENV4, ENV22, and RUD19 of the MVLP, and Policies
CS13 and CS15 of the MVCS.
The wider environmental and economic benefits of the proposed waste management use are
afforded some weight in favour of the development. This is however insufficient to clearly
overcome the substantial weight given to the harm to the Green Belt and other identified harm to
the local landscape character and visual amenities of the rural countryside. Consequently, the
very special circumstances necessary to justify the use of the application site for waste
management do not exist and therefore the proposed development is contrary to Policy 9 of the
SWP and Policy RUD19 of the MVLP. Planning conditions would not overcome these Green
Belt deficiencies.
The recommendation is to REFUSE planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804.

Application details
Applicant
South East Tree Surgeons

Date application valid
7 October 2020

Period for Determination
23 June 2021

Amending Documents
Ambiental Environmental Assessment Letter dated 27 July 2020 with attached Surface Water
Drainage Pro-forma dated 27 July 2020
Phlorum Ltd. Bioaerosols Monitoring Report dated 2 February 2021 received on 25 May 2021
Anderson Acoustics Noise Impact Assessment dated January 2021 received on 25 May 2021

Summary of Planning Issues
This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text
should be considered before the meeting.
Is this aspect of the
proposal in accordance
with the development plan?

Paragraphs in the report
where this has been
discussed

Sustainable Waste Management

No

Paragraphs 42 - 54

Highways, Traffic and Access

Yes

Paragraphs 55 - 73
Page 3 of 32

Page 77

9

9

Heritage Assets

Yes

Paragraphs 89 - 93

Rights of Way

Yes

Paragraphs 94 - 96

Flood Risk/Surface Water

Yes

Paragraphs 97 - 102

Air Quality

Yes

Paragraphs 103 - 114

Noise

Yes

Paragraphs 115 - 120

Biodiversity

Yes

Paragraphs 121 - 129

Visual/Landscape Impact

No

Paragraphs 130 - 138

Metropolitan Green Belt

No

Paragraphs 139 - 161

Illustrative material
Site Plan
Drawing Ref. SCC Ref 2020/0068 Site Location and Application Site Area dated 20 October
2020
Drawing Ref. 14/169SK11 Plans & Elevations Timber/Open Store dated April 2015
Drawing Ref. 14/169SK12 Site Layout/Block Plan dated April 2015
Drawing Ref. 14/169SK13 Landscape Bunds dated April 2015

Aerial Photographs
Aerial 1 – Land at Rolls farmhouse, Newdigate
Aerial 2 – Land at Rolls farmhouse, Newdigate

Site Photographs
Figure 1 – Looking East at Access to Partridge Lane with Office Building Right
Figure 2 – Looking East at Incomplete Building
Figure 3 – Incomplete Building
Figure 4 – Looking West towards South-Western Boundary
Figure 5 – Looking along Southern Boundary towards North and Existing Storage Bays
Figure 6 – Existing Open Storage on North-Eastern Boundary

Background
Site Description
1. The application site, which is presently used by the applicant for arboricultural activities
including waste management, measures some 0.5 hectares (ha) and is located within
the Metropolitan Green Belt. It is ‘L’ shaped extending from Partridge Lane on its eastern
boundary in a westwards direction before extending northwards.
2. It is situated between Newdigate to the north-west and Charlwood to the east with
Gatwick Airport beyond; and is accessed via Partridge Lane (C60) which has a speed
limit of 40 miles per hour.
3. The application site is largely surrounded by rural countryside and agricultural land save
for residential properties which front both sides of Partridge Lane. Rolls Farm House is
located some 45 metres (m) to the north of the application site whilst Mallard’s Farm
House is about 55m to the south beyond several agricultural buildings adjacent to the
southern boundary of the application site. Rolls Farm House is a Grade II Listed Building
(Ref.SHHER_9810). A further dwelling is located about 30m to the east of the application
site boundary on the opposite side of Partridge Lane.
Page 4 of 32

Page 78

4. Part of the western boundary of the application site abuts a small linear block of
established woodland. This woodland includes a series of ponds which are linked to
Beam Brook some 850m to the north. The northern boundary and parts of the western
southern, and north-eastern boundaries of the application site comprise an established
bund ranging from 1.2 to 2m in height. The remainder of the application site boundaries
comprise established hedgerows. The bund has been in situ for at least 5-years and is
therefore immune from enforcement action.
5. Public Footpath No. 309 runs from north west to south east diagonally across the field
immediately north of the application site ending at Partridge Lane just to the north of the
site’s vehicular access point.
6. The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 (land with the lowest probability of
flooding).
7. There are two existing buildings within the application site, the larger of which is
presently used as an office/workshop by the applicant i.e. South East Tree Surgeons.
The applicant has confirmed that this larger building, and its use, does not form part of
the application site for the purposes of the relevant planning application. The smaller of
the two buildings, which has no roof and is incomplete, measures about 104 square
metres (m²) and does form part of the application site and proposal. This building is
located in the central area of the application site. In addition to the smaller building, the
northern part of the application site is currently occupied by three crude storage bay-type
structures presently used for storage of arboricultural waste.

Planning History
8. For the purposes of this report the relevant planning history associated with the
application site is brief.
9. On 3 June 2019 the Planning Inspectorate, on behalf of the Secretary of State,
dismissed a ground A appeal for deemed consent and upheld1 a planning enforcement
notice (Ref. 2016/234/ENF(a)) issued by Mole Valley District Council (the District
Council) on 16 April 2018. The corrected description of the breach alleged in the notice is
“without planning permission the material change of use of the land as an arboricultural
contractor’s depot”.
10. The requirements of the notice were to cease the use of the land as an arboricultural
contractor’s depot and to remove from the land all items associated with the use of the
land for the storage of equipment, machinery, vehicles, tools and plant for use in an
arboricultural contractor’s depot. Compliance with the requirements of the enforcement
notice was set to be due by 3 June 2020 i.e. within 12-months.
11. The summary reasons for dismissing the applicant’s appeal against the District Council’s
enforcement notice are that the unauthorised development is inappropriate development
in the Green Belt and that there were no very special circumstances which clearly
outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, its adverse
impact on openness, encroachment on the rural countryside, and the harm caused to the
character of the local landscape contrary to Policies RUD19, ENV4, and ENV23 of the
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000, and Policy CS13 of the Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009.
12. Subsequently, on 13 March 2020, the District Council issued a lawful development
certificate (Ref. MO/2020/0527/PCL) confirming that the proposed use of the application
site subject to planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 (and land to the north) for

1

Enforcement appeal Ref. APP/C3620/C/18/3202808.

Page 5 of 32

Page 79

9

forestry purposes would be lawful within the meaning of s192 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (the 1990 Act). The reasons for issuing the certificate are
documented as:
I.

“The proposed use of the land would fall within the definition of forestry including
afforestation. Namely, the science or practice of planting, managing and caring for
forests and the process of planting areas of land with trees in order to form a
forest.”

II.

“The Council upholds that no arboricultural activates (sic), namely use of land for
the storage of equipment, machinery, vehicles, tools and plant for use as an
arboricultural contractors depot can be carried out on the land.”

9
13. There is no current grant of planning permission authorising activities on the application
site which remain in breach of the District Council’s enforcement notice. There is no
evidence to suggest that the application site, between 3 June 20192 and 29 April 20203,
has been used for the purposes of ‘forestry’ as described by lawful development
certificate. There has also been no grant of consent for any non-agricultural
development between these dates or after 29 April 2020. Accordingly, the lawful use of
the application site remains ‘agriculture’ as agreed between the District Council and
applicant at the time of the 2019 enforcement appeal4.
14. Without any pre-application discussions, planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 was
submitted to the County Planning Authority (CPA) on 29 April 2020. This application was
subsequently validated in October 2020 following which the CPA formally commenced
the statutory consultation process and public notification.
15. Prior to the submission of planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 the CPA had no prior
knowledge about or involvement in any formal proceedings initiated by the applicant or
the District Council in respect of the application site.

The proposal
16. Planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 seeks consent for “change of use of land,
existing storage bays and existing building for the storage and sorting of green waste.
Erection of roof on storage barn and retaining bund.” Further information about the
proposed scheme is provided in the applicant’s Planning Heritage Statement (PHS)
dated September 2020 where it is explained that:


“The proposed use will enable the green waste to be broken down into biomass fuel,
logs and firewood for use in energy production.” (paragraph 1.1)



“The applicant currently runs the business out of the site but this use is currently
limited, under the prevailing agricultural and forestry use to the storage rather than
the sorting and processing of the company’s green collections from their contract
work.” (paragraph 1.2)



“Activities on site for recycling would be receiving green arboricultural residues, its
sorting through and the process using a differ (sic) for the wood chip and the green
cord wood, either for G50 (Olympic) chip or for log splitting or to the mill to be
planked. The wood will be stored as the woodchip for collection. Cord timber will be
stored and dried for splitting into logs. The cord lengths will be taken to the mill for
planking.” (paragraph 1.3)

2

The date of the 2018 enforcement notice appeal decision letter.
The date that application Ref. MO/2020/1804 was made.
4 Paragraph 20 of the appeal decision letter
3

Page 6 of 32

Page 80



“At convenient times contractors would collect the woodchip to recycle into biomass
fuel. Approximately once a year a Heizohack [chipping plant] will be needed to chip
all of the green cordwood into Olympic chip which can then be recycled for Premium
Biomass fuel. Logs will be split approximately once a month and stored in the
proposed dry bay to be bagged as ordered. Green cord lengths are taken to the mill
to be planked when required.” (paragraph 1.4)



“The plant and machinery that is required on site is a Matbro or Manitou [plant used
to handle and move material] to move timber and load log bags etc. A digger, with a
timber grab, will be required to move timber and sort through into storage areas as it
is far more agile than the matbro/manitou. Small vans will bring in Green cordwood
timber and green chip whilst lorries will occasionally be required to bring in large
Green cordwood lengths.” (paragraph 1.5)



The premises will provide a base for the tree surgery business. Staff will use the site
to load up in the mornings before going to site for the day. In the evening they will
then unload tools and bring back the green arboricultural residues in the form of
woodchip and timber. The permission will also allow for external contactors to also
bring waste use (sic) to the site in future.” (paragraph 1.7)

17. The applicant has also confirmed that:


There are 5 car and 3 light goods vehicle (LGV) parking spaces on the application
site and that these will remain consistent should planning permission be granted for
the proposal. (section 9 of planning application form dated 7 October 2020)



The existing and incomplete building is proposed to be enlarged to measure some
234m² which is about an additional 130m² of floorspace. (section 17 of planning
application form dated 7 October 2020)



The existing building is to be completed and then used for storage activities
associated with the proposed use of the application site. (paragraph 4.23 of PHS)



The proposal is anticipated to have an annual operational throughput of some 1,350
tonnes of arboricultural waste per annum. (section 20 of planning application form
dated 7 October 2020)



The proposal would generate some 30 LGV movements per day over and above the
8 daily car movements associated with employees. (Figure 4.2, Transport Statement
dated August 2020 (TS)). The applicant’s TS also suggests that one HGV would
access the application site weekly to collect and remove processed waste
(paragraph 4.10 of the TS).



The application site is used by South East Tree Surgeons as a base for storing their
vehicles overnight as well as wood chippings generated as a by-product of the tree
surgery business; and an articulated vehicle arrives once a month to collect the
wood chippings (paragraph 2.3 of TS)



The application site will continue to operate for use by the South East Tree Surgeons
business. It is intended that the site’s annual throughput of waste will be increased
from the current 350 tonnes per annum to 1,350 tonnes per annum. (paragraph 3.1
of TS)



The increase in throughput will be generated by offering the use of the yard to other
local tree surgeons. This will increase the rate at which wood chip material is
brought to and removed from the site by LGVs and HGVs. (paragraph 3.2 of the TS)
Page 7 of 32

Page 81

9



Employees currently working for the existing business on site arrive in their private
cars, parking them for the day and using the company vehicles to go and see clients.
(paragraph 3.8)

Consultations and publicity
District Council
18. Mole Valley District Council

9

-

Object to the grant of consent as the
development is inappropriate in the Green Belt
and there are no very special circumstances
which clearly outweigh the harm caused to the
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
the harm caused to the character and
appearance of the area.

Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory)
19. Environment Agency South East
-

Due to increased workload prioritisation the EA
are unable to make a detailed assessment of
this application. Applicant referred to general
EA guidance.

20. English Heritage

-

No views received.

21. Natural England

-

No comments to make.

22. Sutton and East Surrey Water

-

No views received.

23. Health and Safety Executive

-

No interest in the development.

-

As there is no change to the impermeable area,
the existing drainage strategy or Surface Water
drainage system the LLFA have no comments.

24. Lead Local Flood Authority

25. County Highway Authority

-

26. SCC Ecologist

The CHA has undertaken an assessment in
terms of the likely net additional traffic
generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application
would not have a material impact on the safety
and operation of the adjoining public highway.
The CHA therefore has no highway
requirements.

-

No objection subject to the avoidance,
mitigation, and enhancement measures
recommended by the applicant’s ecological
assessment being secured by the imposition of
planning conditions.

27. SCC Environmental Assessment
Officer

-

The scheme to which the application relates is
not classed as ‘EIA development’.

28. SCC Historic/Listed Buildings
Officer

-

Proposal assessed in accordance with
paragraphs 190 and 193 of the NPPF and find
that there will be no material impact on the
Page 8 of 32

Page 82

special interest of the nearby listed building.
29. SCC Landscape Architect

-

30. SCC Arboriculturist

-

No views received.

-

While the plans submitted do not show the
route of the public footpath, having
considered the information available, SCC’s
Senior Countryside Access Officer does not
believe the proposed development will
have any impact on the public right of way or
its users.

-

Surrey County Council should request further
information from the applicant to give confidence
that the residual bio-aerosol and dust effects are
not significant.

-

Based on the information submitted by the
applicant, SCC’s Noise Consultant has residual
concerns regarding the noise assessment as it
does not adequately demonstrate that noise will
not be an issue. Until further and satisfactory
information is provided by the applicant the
noise aspects of the application cannot be
endorsed.

31. SCC Rights of Way

32. SCC Dust and Air Quality
Consultant

The site benefits from a good degree of general
screening by established vegetation, but views
of taller elements such as machinery and
potentially higher material stores are still likely to
be possible beyond the site boundaries,
particularly in winter. Whether harm to visual
amenity and landscape character will arise from
the proposed use is likely to depend on the
intensity of the use and its operational
characteristics, i.e. whether this results in an
‘industrial feel’ to the area.

33. SCC Noise Consultant

Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups
34. Newdigate Parish Council

-

The Parish Council fully supports all that is being
done by the Mole Valley planning and
enforcement teams in respect of activities at
Rolls Farm and it strongly supports their letter of
objection dated 5 November 2020.

35. Charlwood Parish Council

-

No views received.

Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public
36. The application was publicised by the posting of two site notices in the vicinity of the
application site and an advert was placed in the Surrey Mirror on 29 October 2020. A
total of 6 owner/occupiers of neighbouring properties were directly notified by letter.
37. A total of 25 public representations have been received by the CPA. Of these 21 support
the grant of planning permission, and 4 raise concerns about or otherwise oppose the
Page 9 of 32

Page 83

9

grant of consent. A summary of the material comments made in this regard is provided
below:
General




9







The processes to be undertaken on the application site are not fully described and it
is difficult to know the extent of the industrial processes and hence noise
disturbances etc.
Concerned about the industrial nature of the development.
The development is unauthorised, and the subject of an existing enforcement notice
issued by Mole Valley District Council. Approval of the application would make a
mockery of the planning and enforcement regimes in Surrey.
The application site is very secluded and non-intrusive to neighbours.
Rural businesses should be encouraged and supported.
I give my full blessing to the local rural business and I hope the development is
granted consent.
The applicant uses biodegradable products which is so important.
In a deeply uncertain economic environment, local authorities should be facilitating
local businesses to diversify, especially where the change has a positive impact on
the UK's overall shift towards 'lower carbon'.

Highways, Traffic and Access















Partridge Lane is not suitable for heavy vehicles.
Partridge Lane is a narrow country lane with no pavements. It is not suitable for
heavy industrial traffic, which will lead to more rapid deterioration of the road and
increase the risk to residents out with children or pets.
Concerned that traffic congestion arising from the development would lead to
vehicles queuing outside the site on Partridge Lane causing danger of accidents and
disruption to residents gaining access to and from their properties.
The proposal includes 22 vehicle movements per day. This would mean that a
vehicle would be entering or leaving the site every fifteen minutes or so on a normal
day.
Partridge Lane includes sharp corners and dangerous ditches to trap the unwary
and is unsuitable for industrial development that generates significant vehicle
movements.
Partridge Lane is not wide enough to accommodate even a standard car and a
commercial vehicle travelling in opposite directions, without one or the other having
to take to the verge.
Allowing the proposed development to proceed would guarantee an immediate and
without doubt, increasing level, of potentially dangerous, commercial vehicle
movements along a lane that is patently unsuitable for this type of traffic movement.
It is a matter of fact, that most of the lanes around the application site are really only
suitable for low volume use by small vehicles and any increase in HGV traffic will be
a totally negative move, increasing the risk of accident and accelerating the
deterioration of the road surface dramatically.
The application site is large enough to allow vehicles to pull off into the large area
set back from Partridge Lane and so does not cause any disruption to traffic.
There is an enormous amount of local and national companies that use Partridge
Lane and it is safe to do so.
Vehicles to and from the application site are driven respectfully and safely on the
Partridge Lane, in fact they are significantly small in comparison to some of the other
vehicles.
Partridge lane is rural, and we have agricultural tractors and lorries carrying plant
etc. up and down the lane daily.
The proposed development does not produce unacceptable levels of traffic.
Page 10 of 32

Page 84




With proper management it is hard to see how anyone can be offended by the
maximum of one lorry a week (over and above the usual movement of traffic in and
out the site gate which already has splays as suggested by Surrey Highways).
The proposal is for up to one recycling lorry a week which is very acceptable. Other
businesses in the vicinity use lorries far more frequently, often several times a day
so in comparison once a week is harmless.

Visual and Landscape Impact




The proposal is not in line with the development plan in force for the area. This is a
rural area and the development proposed is industrial in nature.
The proposed development would be tantamount to the de-ruralisation of the
countryside.
The application site is unpretentious, hidden behind an established hedgerow and
gates.

Metropolitan Green Belt









The Green Belt is not suitable for industrial development.
By any reasonable definition the proposed development is an industrial operation
and normally not permitted in the Metropolitan Green Belt.
The buildings are existing and only being reused which is not harmful to the
greenbelt because they are pre-existing. The land is open & will be used to store
natural timber and timber products, it's a perfect location for this type of business.
The import, storage and recycling of timber and wood chip fits perfectly in with the
Green Belt countryside.
The proposed development does not threaten to encroach on the Green Belt.
Why can the harm to openness not be mitigated by planning conditions?
The application as proposed will barely impact on the openness of the Green Belt.
Permitted waste sites are allowed within the Green Belt as an appropriate
development and this site would comply to that idea.

Pollution (Noise, Dust, Vehicle Emissions, Bioaerosols etc.)








Noise and air pollution from activity will directly affect close neighbours – from
chipping, sawing and road traffic.
The burning of imported green waste on the application site has been a real
problem. The smoke from these fires is particularly unpleasant and evil smelling and
renders sleep and outdoor activity difficult in properties downwind.
Handling of green waste can spread particulates that can create and exacerbate
respiratory and cardiovascular problems and even immune responses of all
residents of all ages.
The development will result in excessive levels of added noise and increased levels
of air pollution.
The development is non-intrusive to neighbours. I regularly pass and you hardly
notice it’s there.
The proposed development does not produce unacceptable levels of noise pollution.
The proposal to store waste on the application site will cause no-one any offence as
it is smell free with little or no noise emulating from the site.

Rights of Way


Industrial development in proximity to a public footpath will increase danger of harm
to ramblers, local walking children or pets.

Page 11 of 32

Page 85

9

Sustainable Waste Management



Recycling of green waste into biomass product is the type of activity that should be
encouraged, both to reduce the waste that would otherwise end up in landfill, and to
provide inputs for paper and packaging production and as biomass fuel.
Surrey County Council has claimed a Climate Change Emergency. An application to
consolidate wood and chip waste and pass it on a lorryload a month to be made into
eco-friendly product, should be praised, and treated as a positive and useful way to
help stop climate change.

Planning considerations
9

Introduction
38. The guidance on the determination of planning applications contained in the
Preamble/Agenda front sheet is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read
in conjunction with the following paragraphs.
39. In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists
of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019 (SWP), saved policies of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000
(MVLP), and the Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS).
40. In considering this application the acceptability of the proposed development will be
assessed against relevant development plan policies and material considerations.
41. In assessing the application against development plan policy, it will be necessary to
determine whether the proposed measures for mitigating any environmental impact of
the development are satisfactory. In this case the main planning considerations relate
to: sustainable waste management; highways, traffic and access; environment and
amenity (heritage assets, rights of way, air quality, noise, biodiversity, landscape/visual
impact); and the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Sustainable Waste Management
Development Plan Policy
Surrey Waste Plan 2019
Policy 1 – Need for Waste Development
Policy 2 – Recycling and Recovery
Policy 10 – Areas Suitable for Development of Waste Management Facilities
Policy 16 – Community Engagement
Policy Context
42. In England, the waste hierarchy is both a guide to sustainable waste management and a
legal requirement, enshrined in law through the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations
2011. The hierarchy gives top priority to waste prevention, followed by preparing for reuse, then recycling, other types of recovery5, and last of all disposal e.g. landfill.
43. The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (the Framework) does not contain
policies relating to waste management. Instead national waste management policies are
contained within the National Planning Policy for Waste 2014 (‘NPW’).
44. The NPW sets out the Government’s ambition to work towards a more sustainable and
efficient approach to resource use and management. Positive planning plays a pivotal
role in delivering this country’s waste ambitions through:

5

Including energy recovery

Page 12 of 32

Page 86







Delivery of sustainable development and resource efficiency, including provision of
modern infrastructure, local employment opportunities and wider climate change
benefits, by driving waste management up the waste hierarchy
Ensuring that waste management is considered alongside other spatial planning
concerns, such as housing and transport, recognising the positive contribution that
waste management can make to the development of sustainable communities
Providing a framework in which communities and businesses are engaged with and
take more responsibility for their own waste, including by enabling waste to be
disposed of or, in the case of mixed municipal waste from households, recovered, in
line with the proximity principle
Helping to secure the re-use, recovery or disposal of waste without endangering
human health and without harming the environment

45. Paragraph 7 of the NPW explains that, when determining waste planning applications,
the CPA should:







Only expect applicants to demonstrate the quantitative or market need for new or
enhanced waste management facilities where proposals are not consistent with an
up-to-date Local Plan. In such cases, the CPA should consider the extent to which
the capacity of existing operational facilities would satisfy any identified need
Consider the likely impact on the local environment and on amenity against the
criteria set out in Appendix B of the WMP and the locational implications of any
advice on health from the relevant health bodies. The CPA should avoid carrying out
their own detailed assessment of epidemiological and other health studies
Ensure that waste management facilities in themselves are well-designed, so that
they contribute positively to the character and quality of the area in which they are
located
Concern themselves with implementing the planning strategy in the Local Plan and
not with the control of processes which are a matter for the pollution control
authorities. The CPA should work on the assumption that the relevant pollution
control regime will be properly applied and enforced

46. Policy 1 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019 (SWP) explains where relevant that “planning
permission for the development of new waste facilities will be granted where it can be
demonstrated that the proposed development will contribute to achieving targets for
recycling, recovery and the diversion of the waste away from disposal in a manner that
does not prevent management of the waste at the highest point practical in the waste
hierarchy.” The relevant targets for ‘commercial and industrial waste’ recycling in Surrey
are provided in Table 3 (page 19) of the Surrey Wate Plan 2019. These targets are
expressed in a percentage rate of recycling for the years 2020 (65%), 2025 (70%), 2030
(70%), and 2035 (75%), and in the context of the rate of recycling recorded for 2017
(62%).
47. Part A of Policy 2 of the SWP specifically addresses recycling facilities and sets out that
“planning permission for the development of recycling or recovery facilities (other than
inert C, D & E and soil recycling facilities) and any associated development will be
granted where:
I.
II.
III.

The site is allocated in the Surrey Waste Local Plan for waste development (Policy
11a and Policy 11b)
The activity involves the redevelopment of a site, or part of a site, in existing waste
management use.
The site is otherwise suitable for waste development when assessed against Policy
10 and other policies in the Plan.”

Page 13 of 32

Page 87

9

48. Policy 10 of the SWP addresses the location of waste management development. It
says that “planning permission will be granted for the development of facilities (excluding
permanent deposit) at the following locations:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

9

V.

Sites allocated under Policy 11a – Strategic Waste Site Allocations, not in the Green
Belt
On land identified as an ‘Industrial Land Area of Search’ as shown in the policies
maps
On any other land identified for employment uses or industrial and storage purposes
by district and borough councils
On land considered to be previously developed and/or redundant agricultural and
forestry buildings and their curtilages
On land that is otherwise suitable for waste development when assessed against
other policies in the Plan.”

49. Policy 16 of the SWP encourages applicants to undertake suitable proportionate steps to
engage with the local community before submitting their application and ensure that
comments from the community have been considered.
The Development
50. The applicant has not put forward any evidence to substantiate that the proposed
development would make a material contribution to achieving relevant targets for
recycling, recovery, and the diversion of waste from disposal. Nevertheless, it is
reasonable to acknowledge that, at the proposed annual throughput of 1,350 of tonnes of
waste per annum, it would contribute to achieving the relevant targets albeit that this
contribution would be modest. For this reason, the proposal complies with Policy 1 of
the SWP.
51. In respect of Part A of Policy 2 of the SWP the application site is not allocated in the
SWP, it is not an existing lawful waste management site, and its use for inappropriate
waste management development as proposed is contrary to Policies 9 and 10 of the
SWP. For these reasons the development proposed is contrary to Policy 2 of the SWP.
52. In relation to Policy 10 of the SWP the application site is agricultural land used for
unauthorised arboricultural development with associated waste management since 2015
by the applicant’s own admission6. It is not allocated by the SWP, the MVCS, or the
MVLP for any form of development or use. The application site is not identified as an
‘Industrial Land Area of Search’ in any development plan document. It is not previously
developed as per the definition provided by the Framework’s Glossary7, and the use of
the same for waste management is contrary to Policies 2 and 9 of the SWP. In respect
of the building proposed as part of the waste management development there is no
evidence to suggest that this has previously been in active use for any agricultural or
forestry activities. Indeed, it appears that the building (which is incomplete) has been
used to facilitate the breach of planning control described by the District Council’s 2018
enforcement notice.

6

Paragraph 3.8 of the applicant’s PHS
Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the developed land
(although it should not be assumed that the whole of the curtilage should be developed) and any
associated fixed surface infrastructure. This excludes: land that is or was last occupied by agricultural or
forestry buildings; land that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal by landfill,
where provision for restoration has been made through development management procedures; land in
built-up areas such as residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and allotments; and land that was
previously developed but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure have
blended into the landscape.
7

Page 14 of 32

Page 88

53. In respect of Policy 16 of the SWP the applicant has provided no evidence to
demonstrate that any suitable proportionate steps have been undertaken to engage with
the local community before submitting the planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804.
Conclusion
54. The development proposed would make a modest contribution to achieving relevant
targets for recycling, recovery, and the diversion of waste from disposal and so it
complies with Policy 1 of the SWP. However, it does not accord with the locational
criteria for waste management development as set out in Policies 2 and 10 of the SWP.

Highways, Traffic and Access

9

Development Plan Policy
Surrey Waste Plan 2019
Policy 15 – Transport and Connectivity
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000
Saved Policy MOV2 – Movement Implications of Development
Saved Policy RUD19 – Reuse and Adaptation of Rural Buildings
Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009
Policy CS18 – Transport Options and Accessibility
Policy Context
55. Paragraph 108 of the Framework advocates that in assessing specific applications for
development, it should be ensured that:
a) Appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be – or have
been – taken up, given the type of development and its location
b) Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users
c) Any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of
capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to
an acceptable degree.
56. Whereas paragraph 109 of the Framework is clearly that development should only be
prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.
57. In respect of traffic and access Appendix B of the NPW states that locational
considerations will include suitability of the road network and the extent to which access
would require reliance on local roads, the rail network and transport links to ports.
58. Part A of Policy 15 of the SWP explains that planning permission for waste development
will be granted where it can be demonstrated that: (i) where practicable and
economically viable, the development makes use of rail or water for the transportation of
materials to and from the site; and (ii) transport links are adequate to serve the
development or can be improved to an appropriate standard.
59. Where the need for road transport has been demonstrated Part 2 of Policy 15 of the
SWP seeks to ensure that:
I.

II.
III.

Waste is able to be transported using the best roads available, which will usually be
main roads and motorways, with minimal use of local roads, unless special
circumstances apply
The distance and number of vehicle movements associated with the development
are minimised
The residual cumulative impact on the road network of vehicle movements
associated with the development will not be severe
Page 15 of 32

Page 89

IV.

V.

VI.

9

There is safe and adequate means of access to the highway network and the vehicle
movements associated with the development will not have an unacceptable impact
on highway safety when compared against current national and local guidance
Satisfactory provision is made to allow for safe vehicle turning and parking,
manoeuvring, loading, electric charging and, where appropriate, wheel cleaning
facilities
Low or zero emission vehicles, under the control of the site operator, are used
which, where practicable, use fuels from renewable sources

60. Policy MOV2 of the MVLP states that development will normally only be permitted where
it can be demonstrated that it is or can be made compatible with the transport
infrastructure and the environmental character of the area, having regard to all forms of
traffic generated by that development. In particular, proposals for major development will
only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that in order to accommodate the traffic
generated by that development appropriate measures are made to obviate the
environmental impact, and there is appropriate provision for (a) off-street vehicular
parking, (b) suitable servicing arrangements, (c) vehicular access and egress and
movement within the site, (d) capacity of the transport network and in the vicinity of the
development, (e) access and egress to be obtained, or improved, to and from the
primary route and distributor networks, and (f) pedestrians and cyclists.
61. This policy goes on to state that where a particular part of the highway network already
endures high traffic flows significantly above its operation and environmental capacity,
then only small-scale development, which leads to little or no new traffic generation, will
be permitted. The cumulative effects of existing and committed development on the
operational capacity and environmental character of congested areas as a whole will be
taken into account in the determination of development proposals. The provision of new
accesses onto principal traffic routes will not normally be permitted where access can
only be gained from those networks.
62. Policy RUD19 of the MVLP explains that the reuse and adaptation of buildings in the
countryside will be permitted provided the amount of traffic likely to be generated by the
proposal would not prejudice highway safety or cause significant harm to the
environmental character of country roads.
63. Policy CS18 of the MVCS states that travel options and access will be given significant
weight in considering development proposals and that such proposals should be
consistent with, and contribute to the implementation of, the Surrey Local Transport Plan.
The Development
64. The application site is located centrally between Charlwood and Newdigate some 2.5
kilometres (km) east of the centre of Newdigate. It is on the western side of Partridge
Lane in a speed limit zone of 40 miles per hour (mph). The application site’s current
access onto Partridge Lane measures some 13 metres (m) in width at its junction with
Partridge Lane with a set of gates set back some 12m into the site for security purposes.
The width between these gateposts is approximately 5.2m.
65. A visibility of 65.4m in each direction can be achieved from the existing site access at a
setback of 2.4m which is compliant with the 40mph Design Speed based on Manual for
Streets calculation methodology. The vegetation to the north of the access as well as
that to the immediate south of the access is within the applicant’s control and can be cut
back slightly to ensure sightlines are maintained.
66. The swept path analysis provided by the applicant using a small (6.5m) tipper truck
shows that two tipper trucks can manoeuvre around the site adequately without undue
Page 16 of 32

Page 90

issue and can also pass simultaneously through the existing access without obstruction
or waiting on the carriageway.
67. The proposal would generate some 30 LGV movements per day over and above the 8
daily car movements associated with employees; and one HGV would access the
application site weekly to collect and remove processed wate.
Conclusion
68. The proposed development would result in a modest increase in vehicle movements on
the local highway network. Some of these vehicle movements may be undertaken on
main roads and motorways. However, by its very nature, the applicant’s enterprise
forms part of the local rural economy and operates in the rural countryside along with a
range of other rural based businesses. Consequently, most vehicle movements to be
generated by the development are likely to be on local roads (including Partridge Lane).
For these reasons it would not be practicable for the proposed development to make use
of alternative forms of transport including rail or water.
69. Officers are satisfied that that the applicant has demonstrated that there the application
site benefits from safe and adequate means of access to Partridge Lane. Vehicle
movements to be generated by the development could reasonably be minimised by the
imposition of conditions. Similarly, given the existing access arrangements relevant to
the application site, satisfactory provision could be made to allow for safe vehicle turning
and parking, manoeuvring, and loading by the imposition of planning conditions on any
consent granted.
70. Given the nature and scale of the activities associated with the proposed development
officers do not consider it appropriate or reasonable to require wheel cleaning facilities or
the use of low or zero emission vehicles.
71. The County Highway Authority (CHA) has assessed the development in terms of the
likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking provision and
are satisfied that the application would not have a material impact on the safety and
operation of the adjoining public highway. The CHA therefore has no highway
requirements.
72. Consequently, subject to the imposition of a range of planning conditions limiting vehicle
movements generated by the development to those proposed by the applicant; hours of
operation to those proposed by the applicant; and formalising vehicle turning and
parking, manoeuvring, and loading arrangements officers do not consider that the
proposed development would have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or result
in severe residual cumulative impacts on the road network.
73. Accordingly, subject to planning conditions, the proposed development satisfies the
requirements of Policy 15 of the SWP, Policies MOV2 and RUD19 of the MVLP, and
Policy CS18 of the MVCS.

Environment and Amenity
Development Plan Policy
Surrey Waste Plan 2019
Policy 13 – Sustainable Design
Policy 14 – Protecting Communities and the Environment
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000
Saved Policy ENV4 – Landscape Character
Saved Policy ENV22 – General Development Control Criteria
Saved Policy ENV23 – Respect for Setting
Saved Policy RUD19 – Reuse and Adaptation of Rural Buildings
Page 17 of 32

Page 91

9

Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009
Policy CS13 – Landscape Character
Policy CS15 – Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
Policy Context
74. Paragraph 127 of the Framework explains that planning decision should ensure that
developments:

9

a) Will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development
b) Are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping
c) Are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change
d) Create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience
75. Paragraph 163 of the Framework states that when determining any planning
applications, the CPA should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere; and
paragraph 165 requires that major developments should incorporate sustainable
drainage systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate.
76. Paragraph 170 of the Framework advocates that planning decisions should contribute
and enhance the natural and local environment by recognising the intrinsic character and
beauty of the countryside, and preventing new and existing development from
contributing to, being unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by,
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise or land instability.
77. Paragraph 175 of the Framework explains that when determining planning applications,
the CPA should apply the following principle: If significant harm to biodiversity resulting
from a development cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated, or as a last resort,
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused.
78. Paragraph 189 of the Framework states that in determining applications, the CPA should
require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected,
including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be
proportionate to the assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the
potential impact of the proposal on their significance.
79. Paragraph 190 of the Framework advocates that the CPA should identify and assess the
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including
by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available
evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this into account when
considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any
conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.
80. Paragraph 193 of the Framework sets out that when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight
should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm
amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.

Page 18 of 32

Page 92

81. In respect of environment and amenity matters Appendix B of the NPW states that
locational considerations will include: (a) protection of water quality and resources and
flood risk management; (b) landscape and visual impacts; (c) nature conservation; (d) air
emissions including dust; (e) odours; (f) noise, light and vibration; and (g) litter.
82. Policy 13 of the SWP states that planning permission for waste development will be
granted where it can be demonstrated that the development follows relevant best
practice. All proposals for waste development should demonstrate that: (a) the
development is of a scale, form and character appropriate to its location; and (b) during
its construction and operation measures are included to:
a) Maximise landscape enhancements and biodiversity gains, and other measures that
may contribute to green infrastructure provision
b) Maximise efficiency of water use.
c) Minimise greenhouse gas emissions, including through energy efficiency
d) Ensure resilience and enable adaptation to a changing climate
83. Policy 14 of the SWP explains that planning permission for waste development will be
granted where it can be demonstrated that it will not result in unacceptable impacts on
communities and the environment relevant to:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Impacts caused by noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, and illumination
Impacts on the rights of way network
Air quality
Flood risk arising from all sources
The landscape including impacts on appearance, quality and character of the
landscape and any features that contribute to its distinctiveness, including character
areas defined at the national and local levels
f) The natural environment including biodiversity
g) The historic landscape, on sites or structures of architectural and historic interest and
their settings
h) Cumulative impacts arising from the interactions between waste developments and
other forms of development
i) Any other matters relevant to the proposed development
84. Policy ENV4 of the MVLP seeks to ensure that development proposals in the countryside
conserve and will not detract from the character of the local landscape. In determining
planning applications account will be taken of the visual impact of the proposed
development on the landscape, the extent to which the impact of new buildings has been
softened and integrated into the landscape by careful consideration of siting, design,
colour and associated planting and whether any existing landscape features such as
trees and hedgerows should be retained.
85. Policy ENV22 of the MVLP states that where the principle of proposed development
accords with the Development Plan a design and layout will be required which is (a)
appropriate to the site in terms of its scale, form and appearance and external building
materials; (b) does not significantly harm the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring
properties by reason of overlooking or its overshadowing or overpowering effect; (c)
respects the character and appearance of the locality; (d) has regard to attractive
features of the site such as trees, hedges, walls or buildings that contribute to the
character of the locality; (e) provides any necessary screening and landscaping suitable
to the character of the locality; and (f) does not significantly harm the amenities of the
occupiers of neighbouring properties by adverse environmental impacts.
86. Policy RUD19 of the MVLP explains that the reuse and adaptation of buildings in the
countryside will be permitted provided:
Page 19 of 32

Page 93

9







9

The buildings are of permanent and substantial construction and are capable of
conversion without major or complete reconstruction
The associated uses of land surrounding the building(s) would not materially harm the
character and amenities of the area
The proposed use and the form, bulk and general design of the building(s) are in
keeping with their surroundings
The use can be contained within the building(s) without extension, or external storage,
other than such provisions which can be made without any adverse effect on the
building, or its surroundings
Any conversion works will be carried out in a manner appropriate to the character of
the building(s) and have no adverse impact on its surroundings

87. Policy CS13 of the MVCS requires that all new development respect and, where
appropriate, enhance the character and distinctiveness of the landscape character area
in which it is proposed. It advocates landscape enhancement works, where required, to
avoid adverse impacts associated with new developments.
88. Policy CS15 of the MVCS advocates the protection of biodiversity in accordance with
European and National legislation and guidance. It states that all water courses, mature
hedges and trees within development site should be, as far as practicable, retained, and
that planting and other schemes that promote biodiversity will be expected as part of all
development schemes.
Heritage Assets
89. Rolls Farm House is located some 45 metres (m) to the north of the application site.
This building is a Grade II Listed Building (Ref.SHHER_9810) and so merits protection in
terms of its physical structure and its setting.
90. The building dates from c1575. It is an example of an end smoke-bay timber-framed
house subsequently altered and extended. The application site is in the same ownership
but some distance to the rear with its own entrance. In the 2019 appeal decision letter, at
paragraph 27, the Inspector did not find that the use of machinery on the application site
would be harmful to the residential amenity of the site.
91. The applicant’s heritage assessment concludes that in the context of the distance
between the application site and the listed building, the proposed development will not
compromise the setting of the listed building or detract from its historical context, and
that the listed building will continue to be viewed in its proper context.
92. On this basis, and having visited the farmhouse and another nearby building in the past,
SCC’s Historic Building’s Officer considers that that the distance of the application site
from Rolls Farmhouse means the impact the proposed development would have on the
acoustic and visual setting of the listed building would not be changed in a fashion that
would be harmful to the building’s special architectural or historic interest. Consequently,
having assessed the proposed development in line with paragraphs 190 and 193 of the
Framework, SCC’s Historic Building’s Officer is satisfied that the proposed development
will not have a material impact on the special interest of the listed building.
93. Accordingly, in respect of heritage assets, the development complies with Policy 14 of
the SWP.
Rights of Way
94. Public Footpath No. 309 runs from north west to south east diagonally across the field
immediately north of the application site ending at Partridge Lane just to the north of the
site’s vehicular access point.
Page 20 of 32

Page 94

95. The applicant’s planning application documentation does not appear to have considered
this footpath in the context of the proposed development and any resulting implications.
However SCC’s Senior Countryside Access Officer does not consider that it will have
any impact on the public right of way or its users subject to the following measures:






Any fruit trees should be properly maintained and pruned to ensure the definitive line
of the path remains unobstructed
During operational hours, safe public access must be maintained along the public
footpath at all times
There are to be no obstructions on the public right of way at any time, this to include
vehicles, plant, scaffolding or the temporary storage of materials and/or chemicals
Any alteration to, or replacement of, the existing boundary with the public right of way,
or erection of new fence lines, must be done in consultation with the Rights of Way
Group
The applicant must consult with SCC’s Countryside Access Team should they
propose any change to the surface of the right of way.

96. Accordingly, subject to conditions and/or informatives imposed on any consent issued to
secure the measures proposed by SCC’s Senior Countryside Access Officer, the
development proposed satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP in respect of Public Footpath No.
309.
Flood Risk and Surface Water Management
97. A site-specific flood risk assessment should be provided for all development in Flood
Zones 2 and 3. In Flood Zone 1 (land with the lowest probability of flooding), an
assessment should accompany all proposals involving: sites of 1 hectare or more; land
which has been identified by the Environment Agency (EA) as having critical drainage
problems; land identified in a strategic flood risk assessment as being at increased flood
risk in future; or land that may be subject to other sources of flooding, where its
development would introduce a more vulnerable use (such as residential development).
98. The application site is within Flood Zone 1 and measures some 0.5 hectares (ha), and it
has not been identified by the EA as having a critical drainage problem or at risk of
flooding in future. For these reasons a flood risk assessment is not required in support
of the proposed development.
99. However, waste management development is major development and should
incorporate sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) unless there is clear evidence that this
would be inappropriate. In this regard the applicant has considered SuDS in the context
of the nature and scale of the development proposed.
100. The existing hardstanding on the application site is ‘permeable hardstanding’ which
would be retained post development. These existing impermeable areas are attributed
to an existing building (machinery store). The only change proposed in respect of
surfacing is the construction (completion of) an existing building. As such, surface water
runoff from the completed building (roof area) would drain to the ground below as per the
existing situation.
101. For these reasons the applicant’s SuDS assessment explains that there should be no
impact on the existing surface water run off regime, and it would be impractical to retrofit
SuDS measures on the application site. Consequently, the proposed development
seeks to maintain the existing arrangements for surface water i.e. discharge to ground.
102. The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has assessed the against the requirements of the
Framework, its accompanying practice guidance, and the Non-Statutory Technical
Page 21 of 32

Page 95

9

Standards for sustainable drainage systems. The LLFA concurs with the applicant’s
assessment in that there would be no change to the existing impermeable area and as
such they have no comments to make in respect of the proposed development.
Accordingly, the proposed development satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP in respect of flood
risk and surface water management.
Air Quality
103. In respect of the air quality implications of the proposed use of land, the proposed
development involves the importation, deposit, storage, and processing (in the open) of
some 1,350 tonnes waste generated by arboricultural contractors per annum, and the
export of resulting materials for use or processing elsewhere. It would generate some 30
LGV movements per day over and above the 8 daily car movements associated with
employees and two HGV movements per week to collect and remove processed waste.
Consequently, the proposed development has the potential to generate emissions to air
in the form of bioaerosols and dust and will result in additional vehicle emissions over
and above the baseline situation associated with the application site (agricultural use).

9

104. The Environmental Protection UK (EPUK) and the Institute of Air Quality Management
(IAQM) Land-Use Planning & Development Control: Planning For Air Quality document
indicates that air quality assessments should include developments increasing annual
average daily Heavy Duty Vehicle (HDV) traffic flows by more than 25 within or adjacent
to an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and more than 100 elsewhere.
105. The District Council has not designated any AQMAs so the higher threshold would apply
in this case. Both the increase in the number of HGVs and the total number of annual
average daily movements proposed by the applicant is well below 100. The EPUK &
IAQM guidance continues by stating that “If none of the criteria are met, then there
should be no requirement to carry out an air quality assessment for the impact of the
development on the local area, and the impacts can be considered as having an
insignificant effect.” On this basis, while an air quality assessment of the change in
vehicle emissions has not been undertaken by the applicant, SCC’s Air Quality
Consultant considers that the impacts of changes in vehicle emissions would not have a
significant effect. Accordingly, the development complies with Policy 14 of the SWP and
Policy ENV22 of the MVLP in respect of vehicle emissions and air quality.
106. In respect the air quality implications of the proposed development in the context of
potential bioaerosol emissions SCC’s Air Quality Consultant explains that the CPA
should seek an assessment from the applicant that demonstrates that the residual
effects of bioaerosols8 on surrounding land-users are not significant before granting
planning permission.
107. To address the issue of bioaerosols the applicant has provided a Bioaerosol Monitoring
Report in support of the proposed development. This assessment reports results of
bioaerosol monitoring, sampling and assessment undertaken in respect of the
application site and in accordance with British Standards and Environment Agency
technical guidance. Its conclusions explain that median results show no detection of
Aspergillus fumigatus and mesophilic bacteria at the upwind monitoring locations, which
reflects the background concentration at that time. Median bioaerosol monitoring results

8

Bioaerosols are airborne particles consisting of, or originating from micro-organisms (i.e. bacteria,
viruses, and fungi), metabolites, toxins or fragments of micro-organisms. These particles come from
organic matter, plants, soil, animals and humans. They may be put into suspension in the air, adhere to
organic dust particles and tiny droplets of water with which they come into contact and then may be
transported, creating bioaerosols. Typically, bioaerosols consist of very fine particles measuring less than
20 microns in diameter. These particles can be inhaled and held in the nose and mouth while the
smallest, less than 10 microns, are respirable and can penetrate deep into the lungs.

Page 22 of 32

Page 96

at the downwind monitoring locations showed no detection of Aspergillus fumigatus at all
monitoring locations and no detection of mesophilic bacteria at all but two monitoring
locations. However, where mesophilic bacteria was detected this was significantly below
the Environment Agency threshold levels for the bacteria.
108. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposed development will not give rise to
unacceptable levels of bioaerosols emissions subject to the imposition of planning
conditions limiting the annual throughput of waste to no more than 1,350 tonnes per
annum and specifying the types of processing operations that can be undertaken on the
application site. Accordingly, for these reasons the development complies with Policy 14
of the SWP and ENV22 of the MVLP in respect of bioaerosols emissions and air quality.
109. In respect of dust emissions arising from the proposed development the applicant has
provided a Dust Assessment in support of the relevant application. However, this
assessment has provided high level consideration of the proximity and orientation of the
nearest receptors. It does not combine this information with the likely dust magnitudes of
the sources to be introduced by the proposed development.
110. Nevertheless, in the absence of such information, given the nature and scale of the
development officers are satisfied that a planning condition could be imposed on any
consent issued to control any dust emissions resulting from the development to
acceptable levels. For example, planning conditions could reasonably require that the
applicant submit a Dust Management/Action Plan (DAP) to the CPA for approval within
say 2-months of the grant of any consent.
111. Any DAP submitted for approval would describe the management and operational
actions the applicant/operator will use to deal with both anticipated (e.g. forecast) and
actual high-risk conditions (e.g. measured dry dust winds above moderate breeze). The
DAP would describe the conditions under which dust is most likely to pose a nuisance
risk at sensitive receptors close to the site and set trigger levels which, when exceeded,
would require further dust control measures to be implemented (i.e. over and above the
routine measures) by the applicant/operator.
112. Subject to the imposition of a planning condition requiring the submission of a Dust
Management/Action Plan to the CPA for approval, officers are satisfied that the
development would not give rise to unacceptable levels of dust emissions and therefore
satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP and Policy ENV22 of the MVLP in respect of dust
emissions and air quality.
113. Some objectors to the proposed development have raised the issue of burning of waste
on the application site and the amenity affects this has. To address this issue a planning
condition could be imposed on any consent issued prohibiting any fires taking place on
the application site.
114. Having regard to paragraphs 103 to 113 above officers do not consider that the
development proposed, subject to such a range of planning conditions, would give rise to
adverse air quality which may in turn undermine local amenity or the environment to an
unacceptable degree. For these reasons the development satisfies Policy 14 of the
SWP and Policy ENV22 of the MVLP.
Noise
115. The application site is about 120m to the west of Partridge Lane and some 3 kilometres
west of Gatwick Airport. Rolls Farmhouse is located approximately 45m to the north
(Rolls Farmhouse) of the application site boundary with a further residential property
beyond at some 75m from the application site’s northern boundary. There are also
residential properties located approximately 55m and 110m to the south of the
Page 23 of 32

Page 97

9

application site boundary, and residential properties located approximately 30m to the
east of the application site boundary on the opposite side of Partridge Lane.
116. The development involves the use a range of range of plant and machinery including a
woodchipper, log splitter, chainsaw, telehandler, and digger to process and move waste
material on the application site. Additionally, the development will give rise to some 30
LGV movements per day over and above 8 additional vehicle movements associated
with employees. The development would be operational from 07:00 to 19:00 hours
Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays, with no working proposed on
Sundays, Bank, National or Public Holidays9.
117. The applicant has provided a noise impact assessment in support of the proposed
development. This assessment is based upon operational hours10 which differ from
those indicated in the applicant’s planning application form.

9

118. The applicant’s noise assessment has been undertaken in accordance with, inter alia,
Surrey County Council’s Guidelines for Noise and Vibration Assessment and Control
(2020) which advocates the assessment approach set out by British Standard
4142:2014+A1:2019 (methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial
sound). It concludes that whilst the background noise levels (noise levels in the absence
of the proposed development) would be exceeded, noise levels arising from the
proposed development will be relatively low and not dissimilar from existing levels. It
suggests that the noise arising from site activities would not be entirely out of keeping
with the rural/agricultural nature of the area. In this context the applicant’s assessment
indicates that no adverse observed noise effect is anticipated and there is no
requirement for specific control measures.
119. This assessment is similar in conclusions to that reached by the Inspector in determining
enforcement appeal Ref. APP/C3620/C/18/3202808. At paragraph 27 of the decision
letter the Inspector explained that, in terms of living conditions, “the use of machinery on
the site may be noisy at time although no dwellings are positioned immediately next to
the site. Occupants at Rolls Farmhouse may notice some activity but from the evidence
submitted, in relation to the main issue, I do not consider that this is to a harmful extent.”
120. Accordingly, subject to the imposition of planning conditions on any consent granted to
secure, amongst other matters11, the operational hours specified in the applicant’s noise
assessment officers are satisfied that the development would not give rise to
unacceptable levels of noise emissions and therefore satisfies Policy 14 of the SWP and
Policy ENV22 of the MVLP in respect of noise.
Biodiversity
121. The application site comprises an area of some 0.5ha of mainly compacted bare ground
and gravel hardstanding. The bare ground is surrounded on three sides by a bund made
primarily of earth, some rotting vegetation, and covered with wood chippings. Large log
piles and felled tree limbs are sored within the application site. There is some
ephemeral/short perennial, scrub, tall ruderal habitats, and some scattered trees that
have colonised the edges of the application site. Two mature scattered trees are situated
within the site. The site is bounded by mature hedgerow to the south, and a recently
planted hedgerow to the east. A small dry ditch is situated in the southern boundary in
the south-western corner. Mature broad-leaved woodland is situated to the west.

9

Section 19 (Hours of Opening) of planning application form dated 7 October 2020
0800 to 1700 hours Monday to Friday only
11 Limiting plant/machinery types and numbers, limiting vehicle movements, limiting annual operational
throughput
10

Page 24 of 32

Page 98

122. The applicant’s preliminary ecological assessment (June 2020) explains that foraging
and commuting habitat for bats is limited on the application site, however the
surrounding area would provide some opportunities12. It confirms that the application site
is known to support great crested newt in its terrestrial phase, and that a previous survey
recorded a single great crested newt under refugia in 2015 around the base of the
bund13. It goes on to explain that the site has potential to support hibernating great
crested newt due to the presence of bunds and log piles. A pond lies approximately 15
metres to the west of the site in an adjoining property. This pond, which has the potential
to support great crested newt which are common in this part of Surrey, is situated
amongst sparse open hazel dominated scrub, which is surrounded by semi-improved
grassland and mature broad-leaved woodland. However, the assessment also concludes
that it is unlikely that newts would climb over the bund to access the application site
proper, and the constant movement of log piles would make it less likely that they will be
used for refugia14.
123. Notwithstanding great crested newts, the applicant’s assessment also confirms that the
application site holds potential to support hibernating reptiles, due to the presence of
bunds and log piles; and that reptiles are likely to persist in the surrounding habitat of
grassland, hedgerows and woodland edges15.
124. Considering the potential for the application site to support protected and priority species
the applicant’s ecological assessment proposes general and specific avoidance and
mitigation measures to ensure that the proposed development does not result in
significant harm to bats, great crested newts, and reptiles.
125. In respect of bats, measures recommended relate to any artificial lighting to be used on
the application site including direction of lighting; the use of cowls or hoods; minimising
ultra-violet light and light levels, and control of lighting through the use of timers and
triggers. The proposed development does not include any form of artificial lighting over
and above such lighting that may be provided for by permitted development rights. Any
such rights could be removed relevant to the application site by the imposition of a
planning condition on any consent granted in the interests of biodiversity (bats).
Accordingly, the applicant would need to seek express consent for any lighting to be
introduced on the application site.
126. In respect of great crested newts and reptiles the measures proposed comprise retaining
the perimeter bund in the long-term; movement of log piles to the southern site boundary
away from suitable terrestrial habitat for newts; cessation of work (and summoning of an
ecologist) upon encountering a great crested newt within the application site; and
cessation of work and carefully and gently moving any other species of amphibian or
reptile to a safe place on the other side of the bund or outside the working area of the
site. Should consent be granted for the proposed development such measures could be
secured by way of planning conditions16.
127. In addition to the avoidance and mitigation measures recommended by the applicant’s
ecological assessment, enhancement measures are also proposed by the applicant.
These comprise the enhancement and 5-year management of hedgerows which abut the
site’s working area; additional hedgerow planting along the western perimeter bund
together with long-term management; and the creation of two hedgehog homes outside

12

Paragraph 5
Paragraph 6
14 Paragraph 5.2.2
15 Paragraph 7
16 Paragraphs 5.2.2 to 5.3.2
13

Page 25 of 32

Page 99

9

the working area of the application site17. Should consent be granted for the proposed
development these measures could be secured by planning conditions.
128. Natural England has not made any comments in respect of the proposed development,
and Surrey County Council’s Ecologist has not raised objection subject to the avoidance,
mitigation, and enhancement measures recommended by the applicant’s ecological
assessment being secured by the imposition of one or more planning conditions on any
consent granted.
129. Accordingly, subject to conditions, the proposed development is unlikely to result in
significant harm to bats, great crested newts, and reptiles; and some ecological
enhancement would be provided as part of the development. For these reasons officers
consider that the proposed development satisfies Policies 13 and 14 of the SWP, and
Policy CS15 of the MVCS.

9

Visual/Landscape Impact
130. The application site is located within the Cranleigh to Charlwood (WW8) Wooded Low
Weald Landscape Character Area, which is a rural, tranquil landscape, with a sense of
remoteness and intimacy due to woodland/tree cover. It is not within close to an Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) or an Area of Great Landscape Value (AGLV). It
does not appear to be visually prominent within the wider local landscape due to the
relatively flat landform combined with the screening effects of the many hedgerows, belts
of trees and copses present in local landscape. An established bund forms part of the
application site’s boundary, which provides additional visual screening. There is an
established mature hedgerow on top of/adjacent to the eastern part of this bund. The
nearest public views of the site are available from the public footpath (FP 309) which
runs diagonally across the neighbouring paddocks at Rolls Farmhouse, in a northwesterly direction from Partridge Lane.
131. The current proposal seeks to change the use of land and buildings from ‘agriculture’ to
waste management including open processing and storage of green waste. A roof would
be put on the existing (and incomplete) building in the central area of the application site.
This building would also be enlarged by 130m² and used as a machine/plant store.
There are three existing crude storage bays at the northern end of the site which are to
be used for the storage of logs etc. The development would involve the use a range of
range of plant and machinery including a woodchipper, log splitter, chainsaw,
telehandler, and digger to process waste material on the application site. The proposed
use would generate some 30 LGV movements per day over and above the 8 daily car
movements associated with employees and two HGV movements per week to collect
and remove processed waste.
132. In determining enforcement appeal Ref. APP/C3620/C/18/3202808 the Inspector, at
paragraphs 24 and 25, explained that “the area surrounding the site provides a generally
pleasant rural setting. Surrounding fields are largely undeveloped with traditional
boundary hedges including strong lines of trees and also larger clumps of woodland. In
contrast, although the use of the site is based upon tree management it has an industrial
feel. Although there is some screening of the activities as previously explained and some
other industrial uses nearby, I consider that there would be visual impacts that contrast
with this general character of the area. In relation to this main issue, the development
has a small but nevertheless harmful impact upon the otherwise generally undeveloped
rural area. This detracts from the character of the local landscape which does not comply
with CS Policy CS13 as well as LP Policies ENV23 and ENV4.”

17

Paragraph 5.4

Page 26 of 32

Page 100

133. SCC’s Landscape Architect, having examined planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804,
considers that the proposed use for the storage and sorting of green waste is likely to
share some visual characteristics with agricultural machinery operations and storage,
which are prevalent within the local landscape. However, he also considers that the
scheme refused on appeal (Ref. APP/C3620/C/18/3202808) in 2019 shares similar
characteristics with the development now proposed in terms of the open receipt, storage,
and processing of green waste and the movement of associated vehicles. He considers
that these activities may be visible beyond the application site, particularly in winter.
134. Moreover, SCC’s Landscape Architect notes that artificial bunds are not characteristic
features of the surrounding local landscape. However, he also notes that there is a
hedge above/adjacent to the bund along part of its length, and other vegetation including
mature/semi-mature trees, which help screen and integrate the bund into the landscape.
The landscape architect considers that the effect of the bund, hedge and other
vegetation is to provide some low to mid-level screening of the site in views from the
east, including from FP 309. The northern and western parts of the site are also
screened by taller groups of mature trees. SCC’s Landscape Architect considers that
this screening effect will reduce in winter when leaves have been lost.
135. In summary, SCC’s Landscape Architect explains that “the site benefits from a good
degree of general screening by established vegetation, but views of taller elements such
as machinery and potentially higher material stores are still likely to be possible beyond
the site boundaries, particularly in winter. Whether harm to visual amenity and
landscape character will arise from the proposed use is likely to depend on the intensity
of the use and its operational characteristics, i.e. whether this results in an ‘industrial feel’
to the area…” SCC’s Landscape Architect considers that there are some limited
opportunities to extend the hedge along the northern section of the bund, which could
provide additional screening of the existing stores.
136. The District Council consider that the proposed development is to take place in an
unspoilt and undeveloped area and would result in harm to the character and
appearance of the same. Newdigate Parish Council support this view.
137. Officers do not consider that the proposed development is dissimilar in nature or
character to the scheme considered on appeal (Ref. APP/C3620/C/18/3202808) in 2019.
The only ostensible difference is that the incomplete building in the centre of the
application site is to be enlarged by some 125%. Otherwise, for all intents and purposes
and as a matter of fact, the two schemes remain very similar.
138. Having regard to the nature and scale of the development proposed, particularly the
number and frequency of vehicle movements to be generated by the use and the open
storage and processing of waste, officers consider that the development will have an
industrial feel which would give rise to adverse visual impacts and contrast with the local
landscape character. The proposed development would not conserve or enhance the
appearance, quality, and character of the local landscape. The application site and
proposed development provide limited opportunities for landscape enhancement and so
planning conditions would not overcome the relevant harm. For these reasons the
proposed development is contrary to Policies 13 and 14 of the SWP, Policies ENV4,
ENV22, and RUD19 of the MVLP, and Policies CS13 and CS15 of the MVCS.

Metropolitan Green Belt
Development Plan Policy
Surrey Waste Plan 2019
Policy 9 – Green Belt
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000
Saved Policy RUD19 – Reuse and Adaptation of Rural Buildings
Page 27 of 32

Page 101

9

Policy Context
139. The Framework 201918 explains at paragraph 133 that the Government attaches great
importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban
sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts
are their openness and their permanence.
140. In addition to its aim, paragraph 134 of the Framework clarifies that the Green Belt
serves five purposes: (a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; (b) to
prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; (c) to assist in safeguarding the
countryside from encroachment; (d) to preserve the setting and special character of
historic towns; and (e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of
derelict and other urban land.

9

141. Paragraph 143 of the Framework is clear that inappropriate development is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. Paragraph 144 qualifies that when considering any planning application,
the decision maker should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the
Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.
142. Paragraphs 145 and 146 of the Framework confirm that certain forms of development
are not inappropriate in the Green Belt provided they preserve openness and do not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it. One of these exemptions is “the
extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building.”
143. Paragraph 80 of the Framework explains that planning decisions should help create the
conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should
be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account
both local business needs and wider opportunities for development. Paragraph 84 goes
on to state that planning decisions should recognise that sites to meet local business and
community needs in rural areas may have to be found adjacent to or beyond existing
settlements, and in locations that are not well served by public transport; and that the
use of previously developed land, and sites that are physically well-related to existing
settlements, should be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist.
144. Policy 9 of the SWP explains that “planning permission will not be granted for
inappropriate waste management development in the Green Belt unless it is shown that
very special circumstances exist. ’Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the
potential harm caused to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness and any other
harm resulting from the proposal is clearly outweighed by other considerations
associated with the proposal, either on their own or in combination.”
145. In this regard paragraph 5.3.1.5 of the SWP explains that it is “unlikely that the
anticipated waste management needs of the county will be met without developing waste
management facilities on Green Belt land. The overarching need for waste management
in Surrey combined with a lack of suitable alternative sites outside the Green Belt and
the need to locate facilities close to sources of waste, such as households and
businesses, are among the reasons why it is considered that very special circumstances
may exist for allowing development within the Green Belt. Further reasons are the wider
social and environmental benefits associated with sustainable waste management,
including the need for a range of sites.”

18

The Green Belt section of which is not materially different to the 2018 version of the Framework as
considered in the 2019 enforcement appeal decision letter

Page 28 of 32

Page 102

146. It also provides a non-exhaustive list of other considerations which may need to be
weighed in the balance when determining whether ‘very special circumstances’ exist:






The need to find locations well related to the source of waste arisings
The characteristics of the waste development include scale and type of facility
The wider environmental and economic benefits of sustainable waste management,
including the need for a range of sites
The site is allocated in a development plan for waste management use
The wider environmental benefits associated with increased production of energy
from renewable sources

147. Policy RUD19 of the MVLP explains that the reuse and adaptation of buildings in the
countryside will be permitted provided:




The proposal does not have a materially greater impact than the present use on the
openness of the Green Belt and the purposes of including land in it
The associated uses of land surrounding the building(s) would not materially harm
the character and amenities of the area, and conflict with the openness of the Green
Belt and the purposes of including land within it
The use can be contained within the building(s) without extension, or external
storage, other than such provisions which can be made without any adverse effect
on the building, its surroundings or, the openness of the Green Belt

The Development
148. Although the applicant’s PHS does not explicitly recognise that the waste management
development proposed by planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 is inappropriate
development in the Green Belt it does suggest this by explaining that “there are very
special circumstances which justify the proposed development in this location. These
VSCs are very specific to the proposed waste use and therefore differentiate this
application from any local (Mole Valley) applications which have previously been
considered and rejected or any other similar proposal in the Surrey Green Belt.”19
149. Waste management development is not included in the exemptions provided for by
paragraphs 145 and 146 of the Framework and therefore the proposal is inappropriate
development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to
the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Very
special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.
Impact on Openness
150. The lawful use of the application site remains ‘agriculture’. The application site does not
benefit from the grant of permission for any storage, industrial or commercial use; or
‘previously development land’ or ‘brownfield’ status as defined by Annex 2 (Glossary) of
the Framework.
151. The proposed development includes: employee vehicles accessing and egressing the
application site (8 movements per day) and the open parking of these vehicles on the
application site during operational hours; the importation and export of processed and
unprocessed waste by LGVs (30 movements per day) and HGVs (2 movements per
week); the open storage of the applicant’s LGVs; the deposit and open storage of

19

Paragraph 4.26

Page 29 of 32

Page 103

9

processed and unprocessed waste; the open processing of waste by a range of plant
and machinery; the open storage of arboricultural plant, machinery and equipment; and
the extension of an existing building by some 125% (130m²).
152. Consequently the proposed development is not only by definition harmful to the Green
Belt (by reason of inappropriateness) it would also undermine openness and the visual
amenities of the Green Belt by the introduction of industrial activities onto agricultural
land which is located in a rural and tranquil landscape. The development would also
result in the disproportionate increase in the footprint of an existing building which is
inappropriate in the Green Belt and thus adds to the harm to openness. Moreover, the
industrial nature of the proposed development also conflicts with at least one of the
purposes of including land within the Green Belt in that it encroaches on the rural
countryside, and therefore causes additional harm to the Green Belt.

9

Other Harm
153. The potential for other harm has been assessed earlier in this report with regard to
highways, traffic and access; air quality; noise; flood risk and drainage; heritage;
biodiversity; and visual/landscape impact. Officers have concluded that any potential
harm in respect of highways, traffic and access; noise; air quality; and biodiversity can be
avoided or mitigated to acceptable by the imposition of planning conditions. Officers
have also concluded that the proposed development will not have a material impact on
the special interest or setting of the Grade II Listed Rolls Farmhouse building; and that
the proposed development would not give rise to any harm in respect of flood risk and
surface water management.
154. However, officers do not consider that the industrial nature and scale of the development
would preserve or enhance local landscape character or the visual amenities of the area.
In this regard the development would have a small yet harmful impact upon an otherwise
generally undeveloped rural area.
Very Special Circumstances
155. The applicant’s PHS explains that “there are very special circumstances which justify the
proposed development in this location. These VSCs are very specific to the proposed
waste use and therefore differentiate this application from any local (Mole Valley)
applications which have previously been considered and rejected or any other similar
proposal in the Surrey Green Belt.”20
156. In this context the applicant cites: (1) the lack of suitable alternative sites outside the
Green Belt; (2) the need to find locations well related to the source of waste arisings; (3)
the characteristics of the waste development including scale and type of facility; (4) the
wider environmental and economic benefits of sustainable waste management; and (5)
the need for a range of sites, as well as increased production of energy from renewable
sources.
157. In respect of (1) and (2) the applicant explains21 that it is “an established tree
management and maintenance business who have operated in the area for the last 15
years without any facilities for storage, sorting and processing of their own waste.”; and
that the applicant’s work extends mainly across Surrey and in light of a need for the
business to be centrally located within a rural part of the county, the high value of
alternative land, and the lack of land availability within the county’s urban areas, the
application site is the only viable location for the arboricultural contractors depot.

20
21

Paragraph 4.26
Paragraphs 4.10 to 4.17

Page 30 of 32

Page 104

158. Where inappropriate waste management development is proposed in the Green Belt an
important and fundamental question is whether suitable land beyond the Green Belt
exists which can be developed as an alternative to meet the same need. However, no
evidence has been put forward to demonstrate that the applicant has sought to identify
any suitable non-Green Belt sites anywhere in the county, or that there are no suitable
alternative non-Green Belt sites appropriate to the nature and scale of the proposed
development and the business interests of the applicant. For these reasons officers do
not consider that the applicant has demonstrated that there is a lack of suitable
alternative sites outside the Green Belt, or that the application site is the only suitable
available site which is well related to the source of green waste arisings relevant to the
applicants business.
159. The applicant’s PHS goes on to contend, in respect of (3) that “the business currently
has no provision for sorting and processing their wate. It is taken away and processed
for sale as biomass fuel and logs. The use of external solutions for disposal means that
the current income generation scheme is from the manual labour itself rather than the
benefits of the waste. Currently the applicants (sic) have to pay to use other facilities.
The waste is then left for the facility operators to process and then sell on the byproducts”22 Paragraphs 4.20 to 4.25 of the PHS then discuss factors (4) and (5) but
provide no substantive information/evidence relating the environmental and economic
benefits of managing arboricultural residue/waste on the application site beyond that
previously acknowledged in the 2019 enforcement appeal decision23.
160. Officers acknowledge that the proposed development would make a modest contribution
to achieving relevant targets for recycling, recovery, and the diversion of waste from
disposal (see paragraph 46 above). The consequent environmental benefits that arise
from this should be afforded some weight. Officers also recognise that waste
management, as proposed, would save costs and generate revenue for the applicant
and that such economic benefits should also be afforded some weight.
161. However, the positive aspects of the proposed development are insufficient to clearly
overcome the substantial weight officers attribute to the harm to the Green Belt and other
identified harm to the local landscape character and visual amenities of the rural
countryside. Consequently, officers consider that the very special circumstances
necessary to justify the development do not exist and that the proposal would not comply
with Policy 9 of the SWP and Policy RUD19 of the MVLP. Planning conditions would not
overcome these deficiencies.

Human Rights Implications
162. The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation contained in the Preamble to the
Agenda is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with
the following paragraph.
163. Officers do not consider that the proposal or the recommendation to refuse planning
permission engages any Convention rights.

Conclusion
164. The development proposed would make a modest contribution to achieving relevant
targets for recycling, recovery, and the diversion of waste from disposal and so it
complies with Policy 1 of the SWP. However, it does not accord with the locational
criteria for waste management development as set out in Policies 2 and 10 of the SWP.

22
23

Paragraph 4.19 of the applicant’s PHS
Paragraph 28 of the appeal decision letter

Page 31 of 32

Page 105

9

165. The wider environmental and economic benefits of the proposed waste management use
are afforded some weight in favour of the development. This is however insufficient to
clearly outweigh the substantial weight given to the harm to the Green Belt and other
identified harm to the local landscape character and visual amenities of the rural
countryside. Consequently, the very special circumstances necessary to justify the use
of the application site for waste management do not exist and therefore the proposed
development is contrary to Policy 9 of the SWP and Policy RUD19 of the MVLP.

Recommendation
166. The recommendation is to REFUSE planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 for the
following reasons:

9

1. The proposed development does not comply with the locational criteria for waste
management development as set out in Policies 2 and 10 of the Surrey Waste Plan
2019.
2. The industrial nature and scale of the development would not preserve or enhance
local landscape character or the visual amenities of the local landscape contrary to
Policies 13 and 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019, Policies ENV4, ENV22, and
RUD19 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000, and Policies CS13 and CS15 of the Mole
Valley Core Strategy 2009.
3. The applicant has failed to demonstrate factors that amount to very special
circumstances which clearly outweigh harm to the Green Belt and other identified
harm to the local landscape character and visual amenities of the rural countryside
contrary to Policy 9 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019 and Policy RUD19 of the Mole
Valley Local Plan 2000.

Page 32 of 32

Page 106

9

Application Site Area

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 1 : Land at Rolls farmhouse, Newdigate

Page 109
9

All boundaries are approximate

9

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

2018 Aerial Photos

Aerial 2 : Land at Rolls farmhouse, Newdigate

Page 110

All boundaries are approximate

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Figure 1 : Looking East at Access to Partridge Lane
with Office Building Right

Page 111
9

Figure 2 : Looking East at Incomplete Building

9

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Page 112

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Figure 3 : Incomplete Building

Page 113
9

9

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Figure 4 : Looking West towards South-Western Boundary

Page 114

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Figure 5 : Looking along Southern Boundary
Towards North and Existing Storage Bays

Page 115
9

9

Application Number : MO/2020/1804

Figure 6 : Existing Open Storage on North-Eastern Boundary

Page 116

